Brandon Select Board Meeting
October 9, 2023
7:00 p.m.

The Brandon Select Board will meet Monday, October 9, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. at the Brandon
Town Hall located at 1 Conant Square expecting to consider the items on this agenda.

ZOOM: Meeting ID (253 279 4161)
1) Call to Order

a) Adopt Agenda (posted or as amended)

2) Approval of Minutes
a) Select Board Meeting Minutes — September 25, 2023

3) Town Manager’'s Report
4) Rec Director’s Report
5) Public Comment and Participation
6) Update from Otter Creek Communications Union District Representative
7) Discuss Public Car Charging Station Fee Structure and Warranty Status
8) Approve Corrected CWSRF Amount for Vermont Bond Bank
9) Fiscal
a) Warrant - October 9, 2023 - $455,428.55
b) Purchase Order 45158 for Grant Funded Police Motor Cycle - $18318.00

10) Executive Session

The appointment or employment or evaluation of a public officer or employee, to
exclude the Town Manager per 1 V.S.A. § 313(3)(a)(3).

11) Appointment of Budget Committee for New Budget Committee Session

12} Adjournment



Brandon Select Board Meeting
September 25, 2023

NOTE: These are unapproved minutes, subject to amendment and/or approval at the subsequent board meeting.

Board Members In Attendance: Tracy Wyman, Brian Coolidge, Tim Guiles, Heather Nelson, Cecil Reniche-Smith

Others In Attendance: Seth Hopkins, Bill Moore, Ralph Ethier, Jeff Dardozzi, Neil Silins, Doug Bailey, Marielle Blais,
Bernie Carr, Jan Coolidge, Steven Jupiter, Frank Briscoe, Joy Marcotte, Jim Emetson

Others in Attendance via Zoom: Jack Schneider, Tricia Welch, Barbara Smith-White, Bruce Jenson, Nita Hanson, Thomas
Kilpeck, Paul Marr-Hilliard

1. Call to order
The meeting was called to order by Tracy Wyman - Board Chair at 7:02P°M.

a) Agenda Adoption — Motion by Cecil Reniche-Smith/Heather Nelson to adopt the agenda. The motion passed
unanimously,

2. Approval of Minutes
a) Select Board Meeting Minutes — September 11, 2023

Motion by Cecil Reniche-Smith/Brian Coolidge to approve the minutes of the September 11, 2023, Select Board meeting as
amended. The motion passed with one no vote — Tim Guiles.

A correction to Heather Nelson’s name in the Agenda Adoption motion.
3. Town Manager’s Report

A Town Manager’s report was provided by Seth Hopkins and is available for viewing in the Board packet on the Town’s
website.

Mr. Hopkins highlighted the following from his submitted report:

Jackie Savela has been working on payment plans for delinquent taxes, water, and sewer and approximately $70,000 has
been collected since the last meeting and payment plans have been scheduled. There was time spent working on the parking
lot grant that has been submitted and the Town will find out soon about this item. The McConnell Road Structures grant will
be held off until the next grant cycle noting the Town is 21% in the ranking for the grant and they only funded 17 grants this
cycle. The Town will look to re-apply during the next cycle.

Doug Bailey stated as a Brandon resident he likes seeing the parking lot finished as it had been a while since going to the
voters regarding this property. It took a long time to get to the finished stage, but it looks nice and is great downtown parking.

Jan Coolidge questioned the status of the Arnold District Road. Seth Hopkins reported the rebuild has been done, but when
the flooding happened, the project was suspended. The road paving company has advised it will be completed in the 2™ or 3
week of Octobet,

4. Rec Director’s Report

A Rec Directors report was provided by Bill Moore and is available for viewing in the Board packet on the Town’s website.

Brandon Select Board Meeting
September 25, 2023

pe. 1



Bill Moore provided an overview of his report:

. Planning for winter basketball has begun, Attended two meetings last week to work with regional partners around aligning
goals, best practices and even more in the way of collaboration with the Pittsford Rec and Otter Valley,

. Working with those same partners to create the inaugural “Otter Jamboree” as an end of the year tournament for our youth
soccer kids in grades 3 — 6. This will be held on October 22" at the Pittsford Rec area.

. Thank you in advance to Arturo Mendiola for providing frame construction for “Leaf People” that are a feature of Harvest
Fest (October 8™, Estabrook Park),

. A big thank you to sponsors McGee CDJR and Pockette Pest Control for underwriting the soccer jersey purchase for the
U10 girls and boys teams.

. Volleyball is back on Wednesdays at Otter Valley North Campus from 6:30PM - 8:30PM. Commissioner Amber Lee will
be helping people ages 16 — 99 serve up some fall and winter activity.

. Fall Trivia starts on October 1% at 6:30PM at the Center Street Bar. This popular free adult event is a multi-year
collaboration with the Brandon Free Public Library.

5. Public Comment and Participation

Tracy Wyman stated the time will be limited to five minutes on each subject and the ARPA discussion later on the agenda
will be limited to Board discussion, noting there had been ample time for public comment over the past two years,

Frank Brisco, owner of the old high school on Seminary Hill, advised there are $188,000 in state tax credits available for
historic preservation and code upgrades. They have identified $71,000 and requested $40,000 of ARPA. funds to help capture
the $71,000 of state credits that include fagade improvements, code upgrades, and ADA upgrades to make the building safe
for occupancy. If they are allotted the $40,000, it is planned to be partially open in 2024. Mr. Brisco noted it is a resource that
is begging to be reconnected to the Town. A lot has come together and he has been working with Jeff Dardozzi and is
committed to having half as community-oriented space and half for housing. The goal is to provide housing for young people
who want to stay in Brandon. Mr. Dardozzi provided a summary with details and facts and noted one important item they are
undertaking is forming a community-based organization with the mission to bring the building online in the next five years.
All members are community members around Brandon and are volunteering a lot of time to get the first phase done to
transform the fagade and make the main level usable. There are plans and strategies and they have raised all volunteer labor
to do this. They will be presenting to the DRB on October 11" to provide the mission and vision of this space. Tim Guiles
stated the initial criteria for the ARPA funds was to use them for the greatest good for the greatest number. Mr. Dardozzi
stated the public benefit is the architectural building requires a unique approach and part of the building will be focused on
public service and affordable housing. This will be a multi-purpose building with event space and community space available
for screenings, art galleries, short-term housing for visiting artists, etc. and will be seen as a cultural hub for Brandon, It was
confirmed the co-housing model will be a central community space. Heather Nelson asked if the Town would need to
continue to support the building. It was noted that the intent is to build it out to support itself with revenue streams and the
housing would be through a cooperative housing group. The activities could also have revenue stream projections. It was
noted the building has been sitting for a long time but it is a unique building and the approach is to preserve the historic and
aesthetic qualities and make it available for the community to use. Bill Moore advised he met with this group and noted Mr.
Brisco is community minded as he owns all of the dog park and has made it available to the public free of charge. Barbara
Smith-White requested the information that was provided during the meeting on this topic and Mr. Hopkins advised this
information will be added to the Board packet for the meeting that is available on the Town’s website,

Doug Bailey suggested with ARPA funds in general that there may be time to hold some of the funds as things can happen
unexpectedly and could be good to have some non-allocated funds when working on the budget.

Jan Coolidge suggested the town hall roof still be considered.

Branden Select Board Meeting
September 25, 2023

pg. 2



6. Announce New Budget Committee Session

Tracy Wyman suggested letters of interest for participation on the Budget Committee be sent to the Town Manager. The
Budget Committee will be named during the October meeting. Mr. Wyman noted there are two meetings in November and
two in December and attendance for all of the meetings is important. Tim Guiles noted the budget meetings are public
meetings and all are invited and one does not have to be on the committee to attend the meetings.

7. Letter of Support for Brandon Park Village LLC CRRP Application

Bill Moore advised this letter of support would be for a grant application for a private investor who is purchasing Compass
Music Art Center. This gentleman would like to put 19 rental units in the building and he needs a letter of support from the
RRPC and Regional Development Corporation, and an endorsement from the Town. This will create middle-income housing
for the community, Heather Nelson asked if this is a separate investor from Park Village. Mr. Moore advised this is a
different investor and will provide middle income/workforce housing and is separate from the current housing,

Motion by Tim Guiles/Heather Nelson to approve the letter of support for the Brandon Park Village LLC Community
Recovery and Revitalization Program grant application. The motion passed unanimously.

8. Tax Stabilization Application for MT Associates, 9 Conant Square

Bill Moore advised MT Associates, owners of the Dunkin Donuts/Mobil Station, have asked for tax stabilization from the
investment in the property. The Select Board had approved a tax stabilization policy and based on investment doliars they
qualify for 10 years of tax stabilization. Cecil Reniche-Smith stated from the agreement that was part of the contract with
them fulfills the agreement and is in order, Mr, Moore noted this is the 5" or 6 tax stabilization the Select Board has
approved and is the municipal portion of the tax bill only, Mr. Hopkins highlighted 3 instances of robust economic
development that indicates people are investing that includes the old high school, the letter of support for redeveloping Park
Village and what has been invested in the Park and Ride to the west of town hall. All of the policies and years of groundwork

are starting to bear fruit and encouraged the community to pat themselves on the back as this is a good place to build housing,
have a business, and to live.

Motion by Brian Coolidge/Cecil Reniche-Smith to approve the tax stabilization application for MT Associates for the 9
Conant Squate property. The motion passed unanimously.

9, ARPA Allocation Discussion

Heather Nelson stated there are a handful of projects that she feels strongly about and agreed with Mr. Bailey. She suggested
the town hall roof is a top priority as there has been a decade of repairing the building. Ms. Nelson also thought funding for
the Estabrook Park multi-use court was important, as well as the $40,000 request for the old Brandon High School. Ms.
Nelson noted some funds could remain unappropriated as a nest egg. Brian Coolidge suggested funding the salt shed for
$175,000, sidewalks for $200,000 and Phase 2 for the Town Farm Road for $200,000. Tim Guiles stated when first receiving
the $1.1 million there had been a discussion of how beneficial it would be to invest in solar and produce an income to benefit
the Town. At that time, it could not be used in that manner but subsequently this now can be funded. Mr. Guiles would like to
suggest using $309,000 to build a solar facility to provide income to the Town in perpetuity. The Town hall roof repair was
next on his list with a guestimate of $250,000 and thirdly providing matching funds to close out the grant for the parking lot.
Mr. Guiles felt it is important to find legacy things and the roof and solar qualify for that. Tracy Wyman suggested funding a
salt shed expansion, sidewalks, and existing infrastructure. Mr. Wyman noted the Town is always looking for asphalt money
at the end of the budget season and the prices are increasing on materials. These funds should be considered a gift and give
the taxpayers some relief from paving the sidewalks. Cecil Reniche-Smith would first allocate $100,000 to repair and replace
the sidewalks on Pearl Street and Carver Street, There was an estimate between $95,000 to $105,000. From the reports in
town, those are the two sidewalks in the worst shape with very large potholes and people are going out into the road because
mobility devices can’t go down the sidewalks. Ms. Reniche-Smith would then allocate to pursuing permitting/engineering
and land lease for a possible solar array. Ms. Reniche-Smith noted she is not ready to commit completely, but her

Brandon Select Board Meeting

September 25, 2023

pg. 3



understanding from the BEC is these funds are what they would need to get the ball rolling to determine if it is possible or
feasible for a town solar array. Ms. Reniche-Smith noted with the Board having until 2024 to allocate everything, the
remainder she would suggest put some towards matching grants for the Union Street sidewalk as there has been an expansion
for sewer and water lines and grants are available but would need matching funds. Also, the Town’s 22 miles of sewer lines
are going to need replacing and suggested holding some towards that effort. Mr. Hopkins noted the cost is $1 million for one
mile of sewer lines and funds could be used towards matching funds for grants.

Tracy Wyman stated when talking with some of the individuals involved in the solar project discussion, there did not appear
to be a lot of interest. Tim Guiles noted Acorn, the BEC and the landowner are enthusiastic about the project. Mr. Wyman
advised he spoke with the school and fire district and neither have met with the Town or the BEC and there was not great
enthusiasm for partnering on a lease for this project. Mr. Wyman thought before the Town allocated $60,000 that a meeting
should take place and have all in agreement. Mr. Guiles advised the $60,000 is to determine a design to then be able to
approach the watet district, fire district and the school. Jim Emerson stated the five district wants a firm price and if the Town
is committed and sets aside $60,000, the BEC can get a lease and a price to then go to the fire district and school district. If
the project does not move ahead, the mongy could be reallocated to other purposes.

Tim Guiles would like to see sidewalks done and is likely a good use of the money, but the salt shed would not be high on the
list and the paving suggestion falls under items that are funded by taxes and he does not see this as a high need for this
money. Brian Coolidge stated town infrastructure should be maintained before adding something more and there could be
unknown fees relating to solar. Heather Nelson agreed with the sidewalks and noted Pearl Street is difficult to walk on the
sidewalks. She also noted things that are keeping younger families in Brandon should be considered as many are going to
other places. She suggested the town hall is a huge draw for the families and the number of people that benefit from this
building is enormous as well as the sidewalks for people wanting to live here. Cecil Reniche-Smith asked if there are grants
for the repair of the town hall roof. Seth Hopkins advised the Friends of the Town Hall have pursued grants. Jan Coolidge
advised grants are limited when dealing with a historical building. Bill Moore suggested the Town could pursue grants
outside of buildings and grounds and possibly replacing the roof with something that looks like slate. Ms. Reniche-Smith
stated it is more beneficial to leverage for matching funds to get more money for items like the town hall roof, water lines,
sewer lines etc. Mr. Hopkins advised ARPA funds could be used for a match for grants for a new highway facility but not a
salt shed. Ms. Reniche-Smith stated there are few funding sources that do not have few strings attached and this is an
opportunity to get as much as possible with this funding, For ‘Carver Street and Pearl Street, she suggested fixing the
sidewalks but for everything else, leveraging funds to obtain other funds. Tracy Wyman suggested it is a consensus that
sidewalks need to be addressed and asked if there are others that are in dire need. Mr. Wyman suggested $100,000 seemed a
low figure. Mr. Guiles stated for Carver Street it is 916 feet on the cast and west side from the Segment 6 section near the
Ayrshire building. Pearl Street will likely cover all of that street. Mr. Guiles noted for clarification, 8 years ago when he
moved here and added solar, he made $13,000 worth of power and considers it wise to use the money to put into solar, as his
power now is going to be free. Ms. Nelson stated of the ideas mentioned, the sidewalks have the most consensus and
suggested continued discussion of the town hall roof. Mr. Wyman suggested the town hall roof is something that needs to be
looked at but did not agree with spending $220,000 to replace it with slate as there could be something done that is adequate
but far less costly. Mr. Wyman suggested obtaining quotes from roofing contractors on different options. Mr. Hopkins asked
if it was the sense of the Board to put out an RFP on the roof, but noted that the Town needs to determine that they would not
have to pay back grants that have been previously obtained and suggested putting out an RFP for both slate or slate-
alternatives. It was the consensus of the Board for the Town Manager to move ahead with an RFP for the town hall roof
repair. Ms. Nelson thinks many people can reap the benefits of having this as a community center and wants the activities to
continue without interruption. Cecil Reniche-Smith stated the sidewalk quote is to fix the worst parts of Carver Street and
Pearl Street, but she would not be averse to getting an estimate on more to be done. Mr. Wyman suggested consulting with
the Road Foreman and identify where the most beneficial places would be for new sidewalks. Ms. Nelson noted many
sidewalks are not accessible for people who can’t walk. It was noted there are $569,000 of ARPA funds remaining. Mr.
Guiles suggested allocating $150,000 for sidewalks and Ms. Reniche-Smith suggested $250,000 to use towards repair of
sidewalks and maiching funds for grants, Mr. Hopkins noted that with the Union Street sidewalk project when Mr. Atherton
was town manager, he indicated although there is a 50/50 match on the project, because of all additional requirements for
federal money, the Town could have done it at 100% of the cost for less money than the matched grant. Mr. Wyman
suggested a figure of $175,000.

Brandon Select Board Meeting
September 25, 2023

pg. 4



Motion by Cecil Reniche-Smith/Heather Nelson to allocate $175,000 of ARPA funds toward repair or replacement of
sidewalks as identified by the Town’s Highway Foreman. The motion passed unanimously.

Heather Nelson noted the Town has grant matches that are needed and suggested approving an amount and reserving an
amount for the town hall roof repair. Tracy Wyman suggested Mr. Hopkins and Mr. Erickson obtain a conerete number for a
salt shed building. Cecil Reniche-Smith suggested the $50,000 grant match for the Park and Ride did not have a funding
source and recommended approving this amount and considering the $40,000 request from Mr. Brisco, Mr. Hopkins noted
the other alternative would be to use the Local Option Tax of $110,000 but did not recommend taking from the fund balance.

The project did come in at $99,000 in total expenses and was envisioned at $180,000 but was done in a very cost-efficient
way for the parking lot.

Motion by Heather Nelson/Tim Guiles to allocate $50,000 of ARPA funds to match the grant received for the Conant Square
Park and Ride. The motion passed unanimously,

Motion by Cecil Reniche-Smith/Heather Nelson to allocate $40,000 of ARPA funds to assist in obtaining State tax credits
for renovating the old high school. The motion failed.,

Motion by Tim Guiles/Cecil Reniche-Smith to allocate $60,000 of ARPA funds for a solar engineering study to allow the
Brandon Energy Committee to move forward with their work.,

Cecil Reniche-Smith stated it was helpful for the clarification to get the ball rolling and if the project does not happen, the
Town is not out the funds. It is enough of a benefit to the Town to spend 10% of the remaining ARPA funds to explore that.
Tracy Wyman did not think the Town needed to be in the solar business and does not like the Town to have leases. Brian
Coolidge did not think it is up to the taxpayers to fund solar and there are other areas that funding is needed. Mr. Guiles noted
both Middlebury and Bristol bought into solar power and many municipalities are exploring it and this is appropriate for
Brandon to explore, Heather Nelson asked if the $60,000 is allocated for this item and it is decided that the Town is not
moving forward with the project how much money is the Town out. Jim Emerson advised if the Town proceeds and it is not
decided to move forward, it will not cost the Town anything. Tim Guiles stated there is some initial money to get the process
started like getting a lease option that would be about $500. Tracy Wyman asked if there is something to solidify that it will
be a cost of $500. Mr. Guiles noted they are talking about a range of money, but there are some initial expenses to get things
started. Ms. Nelson asked if this is something the Revolving Loan Fund could be used for, Mr. Moore advised this is not
typically something that would be funded through the Revolving Loan Fund as that is used for gap-funding for businesses,
Mr. Wyman thought the school and water district need to be on board right away with this project.

The motion passed. (2 no votes — Tracy Wyman and Brian Coolidge)

Tim Guiles suggested the funding for the tennis court at Estabrook Park would be another consideration. Bill Moore stated
there was the idea of having an interim step to provide various activities as the resurfacing of the court with asphalt would not
be in violation of the covenant and could become a multi-use court. The contractor will be sending an estimate for this
project. Seth Hopkins noted the topcoat on the parking lot was $15,000. Heather Nelson nofed this is something that people
are using a lot. Mr. Moore advised he has been in contact with a vendor who has assisted with a skateboard park for
Middlebury. Cecil Reniche-Smith advised the Tony Hawks Foundation also provides grants for skate parks. Mr. Guiles

suggested $30,000 would be a reasonable amount to allocate for repair to fences, stripe painting for all activities and for the
asphalt.

Motion by Tim Guiles/Heather Nelson to allocate up to $30,000 of ARPA funds to the Recreation Department and allow the
Rec Director to spend the funds as needed. The motion passed. (2 no votes — Tracy Wyman and Brian Coolidge)

Motion by Tim Guiles/Heather Nelson to allocate up to $150,000 of ARPA funds for the town hall roof repair. The motion
failed.

Tracy Wyman would prefer to have a total number, rather than an up to $150,000 in the event the project came in at a higher
amount and would then have to come back before the Board. Tim Guiles noted concern if the funds are undesignated, they
Brandon Select Board Meeting

September 25, 2023

pg. 5



could shrink with the temptation to use funding during the budget season. Cecil Reniche-Smith was interested in waiting to

see what numbers come back from the RFP as the Board has another year to allocate funds and did not want to rush into a
decision.

Motion by Brian Coolidge/Tracy Wyman to cease allocating the remaindet of the funds at this meeting. The motion passed
unanimously,

There are $254,000 of ARPA funds remaining to be allocated.
10. Fiscal

a. Update Blanket Payroll Authorization

Motion by Cecil Reniche-Smith/Brian Coolidge to accept the new blanket payroll authorization as revised to reflect
corrections to the wage schedule. The motion passed unanimously.

Cecil Reniche-Smith asked about the payroll update. Seth Hopkins advised there were 3 police officers that were misassigned

to the wrong step, and one of Mr, Moore’s Rec providers is now working on a contract basis and is being removed from the
payroll.

b) Warrant — September 25, 2023 - $216,689.63

Motion by Tracy Wyman/Cecil Reniche-Smith to approve the warrant of September 25, 2023, in the amount of $216,689.63,
The motion passed unanimously.

Brian Coolidge questioned the warrant of $3,500 for Red Apple Storage. Mr. Hopkins reported the Town purchased a trailer
for the buildings and grounds crew to use and is not for rental space, Mr, Hopkins noted the large warrant is for the Newton
Road demolition that is reimbursable and the contractor will come back to be sure that grass takes on the properties. Jan
Coolidge questioned the warrant for web gis mapping. Mr. Hopkins stated under resources and maps on the Town’s website
one can search for properties and owners and this warrant is the subscription to that service.

12. Adjournment

Motion by Brian Coolidge/Heather Nelson to adjourn the Select Board meeting at 8:47PM. The motion passed
unanimously,

Respectfully submitted,

Charlene Bryant
Recording Secretary

Brandon Select Board Meeting
September 25, 2023

pg. 6



pees VERAION

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT TO SELECTROARD
23 Sepiember - & Octoher 2023

FOR PUBLIC AWARENESS:

Newton Rogd is again an active work site; the Road Closure for safety applies to all motorists.

Arnold District Road is scheduled for paving the week of October 9th or 16th, weather permitting.

FOLLOW-UP ITEMS FROM PREYIOUS BOARD MEETING(S)

| have drafted and posted an RFP for Town Hall roof replacement as directed at the previous
board meeting. The RFP has a response timeframe of one month.

The proof of loss for the Town Hall chimney and roof damage has been processed by our insurers,

The successful close-out notice of the Conant Square Park & Ride grant has been forwarded by
the State and s provided to the selectboard with this report,

The “second” FEMA team we hosted {earlier in September) have drafted o “best practice story”
regarding Brandon’s overflow relief structure {the culvert), which Is provided to the selectboard
with this report. Work with the first FEMA team is ongoing regarding our public assistance claims.

FOCUS AREAS DURING REPORTING PERIOD

A friendly reminder that there are some times when the town manager is simply not available for
a drop-in in-person visit or a phone call. In such cases, | would encourage leaving a message with
the staff if {a) during office hours and if (b} they are unable to assist you directly, or (c) texting
me at (802) 247-3300 if o brief text response will serve. | was out-of-office for four days during
this reporting period: two days at the Vermont League of Cities and Towns annual conference in
Burlington and two days of Homeland Security emergency director training with Brandon’s
Emergency Managemeni Coordinator Tim Guiles in Londonderry. Both provided me with
something of value which could be attained only in an in-person setting. | try to limit my in-person
occasions in favor of Zoom or other less-time-intensive formats whenever offered. To borrow from
WC Fields ... all things considered, I'd rather be in Brandon.

I served as Brandon's voting delegate at the quarterly Rutland Regional Emergency Management
meeting facilitated by the RRPC, Additionally, Tim Guiles and | completed a FEMA self-directed
course on emergency management by remote study.

| was honored to be asked to speak at the Otter Creek Watershed Insect Control District's
September 30th ceremony honoring Art Doty for his work in many aspects of community life. The
OCWICD has dedicated their building on Hollow Road in Brandon to Art and Donna Doty.

| wrote and provided an updated ARPA recap and 1% fund recap to the selectboard.

| gave selectboard follow-up interviews to Kelth Whitcomb of the Rutland Herald.

shopkins@townofbrandon.com 49 Center St, Brandon VT 05733 (802} 247-3635



With Tim Gulles and Cecll Reniche-Smith, | met with Jackie Savela regarding ongoing updating of
the personnel policy draft before it comes to the full selectboard for consideration and action.

Elcine Smith and Jackie Savela have issued o number of letters to wastewater account holders
whose assigned “number of units” is not in alignment with other Town records such as DRB
decisions, land use applications / permits, rental/housing inspections, assessors’ records, and so
forth, This batch was issued as part of o system-wide audit of all water /wastewater accounts to
ensure accurate billing and equitable sharing of the cost of the system across users as determined
by selectboard decisions.

| worked with the Vermont Cannabis Control Board and have received confirmation that local
approvals granted at meetings of 25 September 2023, 24 July 2023, and 24 October 2022
which | reported to the State have been received and attached to the appropriate applications,

FOR AWARENESS OF THE SELECTBOARD

| will meet this coming week with GovPilot to kick off Brandon's participation with them. This is a
technology platform that the City of Rutland has used to modernize their permitting process; they
have expanded their usage of this based on early success and demonstrated staff time savings
and public satisfaction. Our zoning officer has spoken with the Rutiand City zoning officer about
this vendor and the process Rutland has undertaken and has a positive sense of it.

| appreciate that all five selectboard members have participated in (one or more) trainings,
working groups, conferences, office visits, or reached out for o thoughtful phone conversation
during the past two weeks. Your ongoing dedication and increased time commitment to advancing
Brandon’s interests between board meetings is what it will take to more fully realize the
selectboard’s goals for our community,

RESIDENTS” CONCERNS
Addressed with site visits, policy consultations, and town staff response as needed. Of note:

Attempts to procure technical assistance {(equipment and potentially an operator) in a mutual aid
way to facilitate our collection of data required to enforce our Branden land use ordinance to
resolve a months-long compliance issue have failed, In my judgment, the Town has reached the
end of what it can prudently expend of public resources on this matter.

Upon request of a Brandon taxpayer, | made a site visit to Fay Meadow and a follow-up vislt to
the Goshen Town Clerk regarding o Brandon home on this uniquely situated exclave and a
Goshen land use permit which may present challenges regarding access, More work is required
to resolve this satisfactorily to as many parties as possible.

One of the wastewater account holders | met with in-person wishes to speak with the selectboard
regarding the base unit fees and associated policies, | have provided a cover memo and some
background on the matter to the select bard (as wastewater commissioners).

STAFFING

The Town's negotlating team of Tim Guiles, Brian Coolidge, Tracy Wyman and | met with the New
England Police Benevolent Association representative Chris Hoar to establish dates and times for
the first two collective bargaining sessions and to agree to renewal of pre-existing ground rules.

shopkins@townofbrandon.com 49 Center St, Brandon YT 05733 (802} 247-34635



FINANCIAL SNAPSHOT

Operating Expenses (inclucles tonight's warrqnt) | 31 2% of funds /.28 8% of year
—Un;';;;;‘;cted.7_6;;:1“55ignétrslr Fund Balance - $696,096
Locqi- C-;|-3f|on T;;Arvmmble / Undemgnufed . o B - $1 10458
Unobllgqted ARPA (W|Il‘_r-;|;_t:'r ehly until fu[ly obllgqted) | - $249 254
Known Grqn’r Mufches Not Yet De5|-g-i-u-:|';ed - $0
(excludmg Umon Sfreet) f

Delinquent property taxes (prlor yeurs) - was $393 561 / now $402 505
Dellnq—uen_t. waté;é?qu’rewct;er (prlor y;c;l:s) S was $289 046 / now $252 357
_Nu;11ber of pqyment ;lcms for delmquenf c:ccour.ﬂs’ V l 1 active; 9 awalit taxpayer signature

TOWN MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA:
ltems #1 - 5 Routine items occurring every meeting, no recommendation warranted

Item #6 OCCUD update For information of the board; No recommendation
item #7 Car Chargers

Recommendation: Establish sinking fund from revenue to extend warranty coverage
Item #8 Bond update Recommend approval as presented
Item #9 Warrant Recommend approval as presented

Purchase Order Recommend acceptance of grant secured by Chief

Item #10 Executive Session No recommendation
Item #11 Budget Cmte Appointments

Recommendation: The number of budget committee members has been fluid in the

past; | recommend the board select and appoint without regard to a fixed number. As a
reminder to all, the budget workshops are open to the public, and open to public participation,
whether or not a member of the budget committee.

Respectfully submitted,

Bock. M. Mopheos.

shopkins@townofbrandon.com 49 Center St, Brandon VT 05733 (802} 247-3635



From

Subject:
Date:
To:

Ce:

: Dodge, Alice Alice.Dodge@vermont.gov &

Brandon DTF Grant Closeout 07110-DTF-2020-03

Oclober 3, 2023 at 3:22 PM

Seth Michael Hopkins shopkins@townofbrandon.com

Holloway, Gary Gary.Holloway@vermant.gov, Lavoie, Jennifer Jennifer.Lavoie@vermont.gov

Dear Seth,

Congratulations on finishing Brandon’s 2020 DTF project! The attached letter is
official acknowledgement that the project is complete and the grant closed. Once
more, [ want to thank you for all your work in picking up this project mid-stream.
Please let us know if you have any questions — we look forward to working with you
and with the town on other projects in the future.

Regards,

Alice

Alice Dodge, (she/her) Grants Management Specialist

Community Planning + Revitalization

Department of Housing and Community Development

Vermont Agency of Commerce & Community Development

1 National Life Dr, Davis Bldg, 6th Floor | Montpelier, Vermont 05620-0501 | 802-
505-3158

DTF_Closeout_L
etter_B...on.pdf
172 KB



~~ VERMONT

State of Vermont Agency of Commerce and
Department of Housing and Community Development Community Development
Deane C. Davis Building — 6t Floor ~ [phone] 802-828-3211

One National Life Drive

Montpelier, VT 05620-0501

October 3, 2023

Seth Hopkins, Town Manager
Town of Brandon

49 Center Street

Brandon, VT 05733

Re: # 07110-DTF-2020-03 Brandon Downtown Multi-Modal Park & Ride

Dear Seth,

Congratulations on completing the Downtown Multi-Modal Park & Ride at 7 Conant Square.
With this letter, we acknowledge that you have met all expectations in the grant agreement,

that we have reviewed and accepted your final report, and that we consider the project
formally closed.

Please remember that there are several contractual requirements that extend beyond
project close-out, specifically:

» for publicly-owned projects, you must also seek written permission from the Agency
for any anticipated change in use of the project (including sale, discontinued use of
the property, or alteration of the project’s purpose or function) for 5 years after
completion (Attachment D, Section 7); and

* all records and documents relating to this project must be retained for three years
after the final distribution of grant funds (Attachment C, Section 13).

Thank you for your continuing support for the revitalization of Brandon. The Vermont
Downtown Program is pleased to have been a part of this project, and we hope it will provide
lasting benefit for your downtown and your community. Please call the program staff (522-
2444} if you have any guestions.

Sincerely,

Abegnctler . Fanedl

Alex Farrell, Interim Commissioner
Department of Housing and Community Development




FEMA HAZARD MITIGATION CEO
Potential Titles:

* Turning Failure into Feature: The Town of Brandon, Vermont's Super-Sized Culvert
* Under the Road: Brandon's Innovative Approach to Flood Mitigation
* Reshaping the Neshobe River's Path: Working to Prevent More Flooding Heartache

Challenge

Multiple catastrophic floods have impacted the Town of Brandon, Vermont, its residents

from the time of its founding throughout the town’s history until they made a bold decision in
the wake of Tropical Storm Irene.

The New England Rainstorms and Flood of 1869
were so destructive it forced the relocation of
several bridges because rivers and streams were
relocated by alluvial soils.

Brandon has a distinct hydrological feature nestled
in the heart of its downtown area; the Neshobe

Alluvial soils are loose
sediments such as clay, River (nash-a-bee) becomes a waterfall,

silt, sand, or gravel Neshobe Falls drops over twenty-five (25) feet onto
deposited by running a rocky outcrop then continues underneath then
water by a stream or alongside Vermont’s scenic U.S. Route Seven or

Ethan Allen Highway.

during flood runoff into a
The abundant water source was one of the major
stream bed’ orona attractions for its early settlers when the town was
floodplain. originally chartered in 1761. Water sources like the
Neshobe powered many of the small towns across

Vermont and colonial America. The river has served as the lifeblood of the town for
generations.

In October of 1927, the average rainfall was approximately one hundred and fifty percent
(150%) higher than the normal rainfall totals in Vermont. That abnormal rainfali was a major
contributing factor to the Great Flood of 1927 which occurred in early November 1927.

Other storms such as the Great Flood of 1947 and the Flood of 1973 caused significant

damage and are a part of the lore of how the normally placid Neshobe River can turn
destructive.



In an eerily parallel move, 2011's Tropical Storm Irene mirrored the Great New England
Hurricane of 1938 cutting a catastrophic swath through downtown Brandon. Archival
photographs from 1938 and photos from 2011 shows exactly how the Neshobe River
followed its previously carved path of destruction.

Neshobe River Destruction Center Street, Brandon, VT 1938 and 2011



House of Fizza during Tropical Storm Irene

House of Pizea ofter Tropical Storm frene

Solution

Tropical Storm Irene left the downtown Brandon businesses shattered, and the citizens of
the town devastated. As the citizens of Brandon were rallying to rebuild, Ethan Swift, a
former elected member of the Town of Brandon’s Select Board and longtime employee of
Vermont's Department of Environmental Conservation, proposed the idea of building a relief
culvert to divert the Neshobe’s overflow instead of trying to allow the additional water to



keep overwhelming the bottleneck at Neshobe Falls and continue flooding the Downtown
area repeatedly.

Before Instaflation of Overflow Culvert

The proposal at first met with some resistance, but after an informational campaign

including videos, accompanied by in person public meetings the townspeople were soon
onboard.

Modern day Town of Brandon management coordinated with the State of Vermont and the
Federal Emergency Management Agency’s Hazard Mitigation Grant Program to plan and
fund the massive effort to minimize or prevent future flooding of the town.

The project’s timeline was completed in several stages. First, the House of Pizza, the
business whose foundation was undermined and moved into the center of U.S. Route Seven
by the Neshobe's waters, was demolished.

In 2016, the major portion of construction of the overflow relief culvert under U.S. Route
Seven begin.

The adjacent building’s footprint was minimized by removing most of the rear dining area
and two pillars were installed to give additional stability as parts of the building still
overhung over the Neshobe River.

Next, excavation into the bedrock took place, then finally pre-formed pieces of concrete were
craned into placed underneath Center Street,

Final dimensions of the culvert are six feet high (6) by twelve feet wide (12) and two hundred
thirty feet long (230).



View of compieted Brandon Overflow Culvert from Street

The massive overflow culvert is intended to be remain dry during normal river stages, only

accepting and funneling water during of times of heavy rainfall, snow melt, or high river
levels.

Protection of life, of homes, and of the business corridor were the impetus for the Town to
take extraordinary measures and endure almost three solid years of construction work
between the installation of the culvert, other mitigation projects, and repairs to Ethan Allen
Highway that had been scheduled since the 1970s.

Part of the reasons for the Neshobe's flooding may have stemmed from the town members
attempting to reguiate, then tame the power of Neshobe River in the early 1820s by creating

a weir above Neshobe Falls with the goal to provide hydropower to mills in the downtown
areas.

In addition to the weir, the manipulation of the
Neshobe included installation of a canal with a
virtual ninety-degree angle causing an unnatural
turn for the river. Mostly likely this turn produced a
swifter flow of water to increase the power the

A weir is a small dam

river created but which later caused increased built across a river to
flooding concerns during heavy rain events. controf the upstream:
The outflow of the two hundred and thirty-foot water level.

(230) culvert hits just above the rock outcropping
of the Neshobe Falls. In an effort to mitigate



erosion losses from the outflow, the project also included concrete transverses to slow the
waterflow on the outcropping and before the excess water flows back into the deeper
portion of river.

Before the installation of the overflow relief culvert, the Town of Brandon estimated the
repairs after each flood event to Route Seven, the downtown area including Green Park and
Kennedy Park cost roughly four hundred and twelve thousand dollars ($41.2,000).

The construction of the culvert ran from October 2016 through May 2017 and was
completed on schedule and just in the nick of time according to Bill Moore, the former
Interim Town Manager explained. “On the first of July 2017, we received four inches of rain

In a couple of hours and the culvert accepted the water for the first time and saved the
Downtown from fiocoding.”

Brandon sits at the foothills of the Green Mountains in south central Vermont, an hour's
drive from the state’s major municipalities of Burlington and the state’s capital, Montpelier.
The distance from the larger cities gives them a can-do spirit, Seth Hopkins, the Brandon
L Town Manager, spoke of how at ease the
’f /9/ 4W #Fil residents feel after the installation as opposed to
" #F[ 7 the fear and anxiety they felt before. “it’s been life
| 14 changing; it really used to be when a big storm

"t was predicted all the business owners would start
to think about, ‘What do we need to do?’, ‘Do we
need to put sandbags around the backdoor?"”
Hopkins further clarified, “It’s really just been this
massive kind of relief of worry for all of the foiks

who own any kind of property because the Town
was rebuilding the road each time.”

Brandon’s population of four thousand, one
hundred and twenty-nine (4,1.29) residents show
| that a dedicated group can make huge strides
Y3 S PN : % toward mitigating past problems and curtailing
Reor of Culvert - Outflow Transverse future flooding by voting in favor of a bond

package to fund the town’s portion of the
construction cost.

Brandon's overflow culvert project was completed at a final cost of approximately two
million, five hundred thousand dollars ($2,500,000). Utilizing the seventy-five/twenty-five
percent (75/25%) split with FEMA’s Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding, the town’s
portion of the project was roughly six hundred and twenty-four thousand dollars ($624,000).



Brandon has become even more proactive in addressing other problem areas. “The town of
Brandon is a good example where it took a robust mix of green and grey infrastructure that
made a big difference in the flood-related damage in that area, which included property
buyouts, building removal (the old Tubbs Factory), berm removal, river corridor easements
and upsizing culverts (including a box culvert) upstream, and then replacing more flood
infrastructure in the downtown. This included a "green streets" project, flood proofing
bu:ldmgs and removal of one buﬂdmg that was a huge encroachment in the river. The

e R e e Diggest project was a FEMA - HMGP funded
overflow culvert,” Ethan Swift, Vermont's
Department of Environmental Conservation.

A berm is a raised piece
of earth bordering a body
of water, road, or
embankment. It can be 2037 but the peace of mind for its residents and
formed from compacted businesses has already been paid in full.

soil.

The Town of Brandon’s bond debt for the
construction of the relief culvert will be settled in



TOWN MANAGER

Brief Overview of Town-Owned Electric Car Chargers
Conant Square Park & Ride

ALL NUMBERS ARE APPROXIMATE/ESTIMATED
BASED ON BEST AVAILABLE INFORMATION
5 September 2023 UPDATED 22 Sept 2023

The ChargePoint chargers are presently set by the Town at 17¢ per kWh plus 75¢ per
hour plugged in (whether charging or not).

The Town presently pays GMP 18.336¢ per kWh plus various fees equating to 23.02¢

Two-hour charging example at 7kW delivered per hour:

The electric car driver pays ChargePoint $3.74 (14kWh energy + parking).
The Town pays GMP for 14kWh (including the fees) $3.22

Chargepoint retains 10% of the customer’s payment: 37¢

Net revenue {loss) to Town: 15¢ {approximately break-even)

Chargepoint’s fee covers cost of monitoring and maintenance of the charging stations.
The chargers are covered by a 5 year warranty expiring 3 Feb 2026.

Cash basis (time of transaction on the Town's books, not time of usage):
Total revenue from Chargepoint FY23  $948.96
Total payment to GMP in FY23 $838.34

Net revenue (loss) to Town: $111.62

Update 22 September 2023:
Bill Moore had reached out to ChargePoint and has confirmed that after Feb 2026, we

can re-warranty our installation (two stations as o group) for $1,500 on a year-to-year
basis or $5,000 for a five-year renewal.

Otherwise, it would be “time and materials” for repairs out of warranty.

shopkins@townofbrandon.com 49 Center 5f, Brandon VT 05733 (802) 247-3635



BOND SALE NOTICE -

The undersigned will received sealed bids at the office of the Town Treasurer in

- Brandon, Vermont until ten o’clock (10:00 EST) in the forenoon of Monday, October 9, 2023, -
for the purchase of all but no part of the Three Million, Seven Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollar
($3,780,000) public sewer system improvement bond of the Town of Brandon, which bond shall
be dated October 13, 2023, principal and interest payable in sixty (60) consecutive semi-annual
installments, commencing April 13, 2024, through October 13, 2053, Thereafter, at a special
meeting of the Selectboard of the Town of Brandon to be held at seven o'clock (7:00 EST) in the
evening of October 9, 2023, such bids will be opened and considered.

Right is reserved to prepay the bond in full without premium or penalty. The bond will
be payable at such place as the registered holder may designate. Bids will be submitted only in
the face amount of the bond without discount or premium. The bond shall bear interest at a fixed
rate not to exceed 1.7500% per annum. Right is reserved to reject any or all bids. Approving
legal opinion of Primmer, Piper, Eggleston & Cramer, PC, of Burlington, Vermont, will be
furnished to the purchaser free of charge. The bond will be issued in registered form, both as to
interest and principal. The bond will be designated a “bank qualified obligation” under Section
265(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. In the opinion of counsel, interest paid on the
bond is not included in gross income of the recipient thereof for present federal and Vermont
income tax purposes. '

Interested persons are advised that the Town has not prepared nor disseminated an
official statement, offering memorandum or other disclosure materials with respect to the
issuance and sale of the bond. The Town has not applied for nor received a credit rating or any
form of credit enhancement with respect to the issuance and sale of the bond, nor has it engaged
an underwriter or financial advisor, nor has it undertaken any commitment to make post-issuance
disclosure of material events under Securities Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12.

Address sealed bids to the undersigned mm;ked “Proposal for Bond.”

Dated: October 3, 2023 ‘.
Town Treasurer
49 Center Street
Brandon, VT 05733
802-247-3635
802-247-5481 (fax)
sgage@townofbrandon.com

52793741



BOND SALE NOTICE

The undersigned will received sealed bids at the office of the Town Treasurer in Brandon,

-~ Vermont until ten o’clock (10:00 EST) in the forenoon of Monday, October 9, 2023, for the purchase -
of all but no part of the Three Million, Seven Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollar ($3,780,000) public
sewer system improvement bond of the Town of Brandon, which bond shall be dated October 13,
2023, principal and interest payable in sixty (60) consecutive semi-annual installments, commencing
April 13, 2024, through October 13, 2053, Thereafter, at a special meeting of the Selectboard of the
Town of Brandon to be held at seven o'clock (7:00 EST) in the evening of October 9, 2023, such bids
will be opened and considered.

Right is reserved to prepay the bond in full without premium or penalty. The bond will be
payable at such place as the registered holder may designate. Bids will be submitted only in the face
amount of the bond without discount or premium. The bond shall bear interest at a fixed rate not to
exceed 1.7500% per annum, Right is reserved to reject any or all bids. Approving legal opinion of
Primmmer, Piper, Eggleston & Cramer, PC, of Burlington, Vermont, will be furnished to the purchaser
free of charge. The bond will be issued in registered form, both as to interest and principal. The
bond will be designated a “bank qualified obligation” under Section 265(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986. In the opinion of counsel, interest paid on the bond is not included in gross income of
the recipient thereof for present federal and Vermont income tax purposes.

Interested persons are advised that the Town has not prepared nor disseminated an official
statement, offering memorandum or other disclosure materials with respect to the issuance and sale
of the bond. ‘The Town has not applied for nor received a credit rating or any form of credit
enhancement with respect to the issuance and sale of the bond, nor has it engaged an underwriter or
financial advisor, nor has it undertaken any commitment to make post-issuance disclosure of material
events under Securities Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12.

Address sealed bids to the undersigned marked “Proposal for Bond.”

Dated: October 3, 2023 @-ﬂw

Town Treasurer

49 Cenfer Street

Brandon, VT 05733
802-247-3635
802-247-5481 (fax)
sgage@iownofhrandon.com

CERTIFICATE
The undersigned Clerk of the Town of Brandon does certify that the foregoing Bond Sale Notice was

posted in the office of the Town Clerk and on the Town website (www.townofbrandon.com) and was
published in the Bond Buyer, a financial newspaper published in the City of New York and the

Rutland Herald, a newspaper published in Rutland, Vermont and generally circulating in the County
of Rutland and in the Town of Brandon on October 3, 2023 %
< <.

Town Clerk

5279374.1



RESOLUTION AND CERTIFICATE

WHEREAS, at a meeting of the Selectboard of the Town of Brandon, at which a mgjority

- and a quorum of the Selectboard was present and voting, which meeting was duly called,

noticed, and held on January 11, 2021, it was unanimously found and determined that the public
interest and necessity required certain public sewer system improvements hereinafter described
in Exhibit A, and it was further found and determined that the cost of completing said
improvements would be too great to be paid out of ordinary annual income and revenue of the
Town, and that a proposal to provide such improvements and issue bonds of the Town to pay for
its part of the cost of the same should be submitted to the legal voters at an annual thereof to be
called and held for that purpose on March 2, 2021, and it was so ordered, all of which action is
hereby ratified and confirmed; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the foregoing action, the Selectboard cansed to be issued a
Warning for the annual Town meeting to be held on March 2, 2021, to vote by Australian ballot
between the hours stated on a certain proposal described in the Warning, Exhibit A-1 attached
hereto and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, said Warning was duly recorded, posted and published; and

WHEREAS, said meeting was duly held on the date and at the place and during the hours
appointed, and the said proposal to make the improvements and issue bonds as aforesaid was
voted in the affirmative, as shown by Exhibits B-1 attached hereto and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the Town is carrying forward the anthorized improvements to
completion; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the direction of the Selectboard, the T'own has duly advertised
for bids for its $3,780,000 face amount public sewer system bond (the “Bond™) described in the
Bond Sale Notice, Exhibit C attached hereto and made a part hereof, and

WHEREAS, no bids were received from private investors, the United States of America,
acting by and through its Department of Agriculture, offered to take the Bond at a price of par,

bearing interest at the rate of 1.7500% per annum, and instructed that the Bond be issued initially

in registered form, which offer, resulting in the lowest net interest cost to the Town, was
accepted; ' '

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Selectboard and the Town Clerk and
Treasurer proceed forthwith to cause the Bond to be execnted, issued and delivered to the United
States of America at the price and on the terms stated, as aforesaid; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in addition to all other taxes, there shall annually be
assessed and collected each year until the Bond and the interest thereon are fully paid a tax, or
user charge, sufficient to pay the same as the same shall become due; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Bond, when issued and delivered pursuant to law
and this Resolution, shall be a valid and binding general obligation of the Town, payable
5279374.1



according to the law and the terms and tenor thereof from unlimited ad valorem taxes on the
grand list of taxable property of the Town as established, assessed and apportioned by law; and

= BETT FURTHER RESOLVED that all acts and things heretofore done by the lawfully - — -
constituted officers of the Town and the Clerk and Treasurer thereof in, about or concerning the
improvements hereinabove described, and the issuance of the Bond or other debt in connection
therewith, are hereby ratified and confirmed; and

We, the undersigned Selectboard, Town Clerk and Town Treasurer, hereby certify that
we as such officers have signed the Bond, numbered 1 in the denomination of $3,780,000, being
the bond described in the Bond Sale Notice of the Town Treasurer, dated October 3, 2023,
attached hereto as Exhibit C, payable as therein set forth and reciting that it is authorized and
issued under and pursuant to vote of the Town on March 2, 2021. We also certified that the
Bond is duly registered in the office of the Town Treasurer as prescribed by law.

We, hereby certify that we are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers as
undersigned, that the Bond is issued and registered pursuant to said authority, that no authority or
proceedings relating thereto have been taken other than those shown by the foregoing recital, and
that no such authority has been repealed or amended.

We also certify that there has been full and timely compliance with all open meeting,
public records access, and public procurement, solicitation and bidding laws, ordinances and
regulations with respect to cach of the transactions embodied in this Resolution.

We further certify that no litigation is pending or threatened affecting the validity of the
Bond or the levy and collection of taxes and assessments to pay the same, that neither the
corporate existence, nor the boundaries of the Town nor the title of any of us to our respective
offices is being questioned or contested.

5279374.1



Adopted at a regular meeting of the Selectboard of the Town of Brandon on October 9,
2023, for delivery on October 13, 2023.

Town Treasurer

Town Clerk Selectboard
Town of Brandon

82793741



TAX CERTIFICATE

(General Obligation)

We, the Town Treasurer and at least a majority of the Selectboard of the Town of
Brandon, Vermont (the “Municipality”), HEREBY CERTIFY and reasonably expect
with respect to the issnance and the use of proceeds of the $3,780,000 General Obligation
Bond (the “Municipal Bond”) of the Municipality, dated October 13, 2023, as follows:

1. We are the officers of the Municipality duly charged and responsible for
issuing the Municipal Bond. The certifications and expectations set forth in this
document are being given pursuant to Sections 141 and148 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder (collectively,
the ”Code”).

2. The dates, maturities, denominations and rates of interest of the Municipal
Bond are as shown and more fully described in Schedule A, attached hereto. The
Municipal Bond is fully registered and its issuance has been reported to the Internal
Revenue Service on IRS Form 8038-G, a copy of which is attached as Schedule B.

3. The proceeds of the Municipal Bond will be used to provide funds for the
purpose of financing public sewer system capital improvements located in Brandon,
Vermont (the “Project”), as shown on Schedule C attached. There are no other funds
available to the Municipality under the provisions and within the meaning of Regulation
Section 1.148-6(d)(3), other than grants-in-aid and capital reserve funds of the
Municipality dedicated to the Project. The weighted average maturity of the Municipal
Bond is less than 120% of the useful life of the Project.

4, The Municipality will use the proceeds of the Municipa!l Bond within thirty
(30) days of the date hereof to retire any obligations in the nature of short-term bond
anticipation notes (the “Prior Obligations™) which originally financed the Pxroject or to
reimburse itself for Project costs advanced under a duly adopted notice of official intent.
The proceeds of the Municipal Bond may be invested in the interim at a yield in excess of
the yield on the Municipal Bonds. To the extent there remain any unspent proceeds of
the Prior Obligations, any and all of such proceeds shall be invested at a yield not in
excess of the yield on the Municipal Bonds.

5. The proceeds of the sale of the Municipal Bond do not exceed the amount
necessary to retire the Prior Obligations and to complete the Project. The proceeds of

52793741



the Municipal Bond will not be used to effect a tax increment financing loan or a tax
assessment loan under Regulation Section 1.141-5(c)(3) and (d).

6.  The Municipality has entered into (or will enter into within six months from
the date bereof or the issue date of the Prior Obligations, whichever is earlier) a binding
commitment for the acquisition, construction or accomplishment of the Project. The
amount of such commitment(s) with respect to the Project exceeds an amount equal to
five percent (5%) of the greater of the Municipal Bond, the Prior Obligations, or the
aggregate amount of obligations issued for the Project. Work on the acquisition,
construction or accomplishment of the Project will proceed with due diligence to the
completion thereof. The Municipal Bond proceeds will be invested temporarily and
expended in compliance with the rebate requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code, so as
to maintain the interest on the Municipal Bond excludable from the gross income of the
recipient thereof.

7. The total proceeds received from the sale of the Municipal Bond and the
Prior Obligations with respect to the Project do not exceed the total cost of the Project.
All unexpended proceeds will be deposited and maintained in a segregated fund and not
commingled with amounts from other sources such as state or federal granis-in-aid,
Municipal capital reserve funds or project appropriations, or private Project donations.

8. It is not expected that the Project will be sold or otherwise disposed of in
whole or in part. Public use of the Project will continue for 5o long as the Municipal
Bond remains outstanding, In the event an unanticipated change in private use or
disposition of the Project occurs, the Municipality will undertake remediation measures
under Regulation Section 1.141-12 at the earliest opportunity so as to preserve the tax
exempt character of the Municipal Bond.

9. Principal of and intetest on the Municipal Bond will be paid from taxes and
other revenues of the Municipality. There are no private payments for the use of the
Project other than payments made by members of the general public. The funds used to
pay principal and interest on the Municipal Bond, whether or not deposited into a
segregated debt service fund, will be expended within thirteen (13) months of the date of
deposit in such fund on the payment of debt service on the Municipal Bond. Any
amounts received from the investment of such fund will be used to pay debt service on
the Municipal Bond within one (1) year of the date of receipt. The debt service fund, if
any, will be used to achieve a proper maiching of revenues with principal and interest
payments within each bond year and will be depleted at least once each bond year except
for a reasonable carryover amount not to exceed the greater of (i) the earnings on the fund
for the immediately preceding bond year or (ii) one-half of principal and interest

payments on the issue for the immediately preceding bond year. Amounts deposited into

5279374.1



such a debt service fund, if any, may be invested at a yield in excess of the yield on the
Municipal Bond.

10.  Except for the debt service fund described herein, if any, the Municipality
has not created or established, and does not expect to create or establish, any sinking fund
or other similar fund which the Municipality reasonably expects to use to pay principal or
interest on the Municipal Bond, or from which there is a reasonable assurance that
amounts therein will be available to pay debt service on the Municipal Bond,

11.  No portion of the proceeds of the Municipal Bond will be invested, directly
or indirectly, in federally insured deposits or accounts other than (a) investments of
unexpended Municipal Bond proceeds for an initial temporary period unti the proceeds
are needed for the Project; and (b) investment of moneys on deposit in a bonafide debt
service fund. No portion of the proceeds of the Municipal Bond will be loaned or
otherwise made available to any private person, nor shall any of such proceeds be
expended or invested in a manner which will result in the Municipal Bond being
classified as a “hedge bond” under Section 149(g) of the Code.

12.  The Municipality is a political subdivision of the State of Vermont and is
an entity with general taxing powers, the power to incur debt, the power of eminent
domain, and the power to enact and enforce police power measures. The Municipal Bond
18 not a “private activity bond” (as defined in Section 141 of the Code). At least 95% of
the proceeds of the Municipal Bond are to be used for local governmental activities of the
Municipality. Neither the Municipality nor any agency, instrumentality or political
subdivision of the Municipality has issued or expects to issue any tax-exempt bonds or
notes during calendar year 2023 other than; (i) the Municipal Bond; (ii) short-term notes
in an aggregate amount not to exceed the Municipality’s maximum anticipated
cumulative cash flow deficit, to be issued in anticipation of the receipt of taxes and other
revenues of the Municipality; (iii) current refunding bonds in an amount not to exceed the
amount of bonds to be refunded; and (iv) shorf-term notes issued in anticipation of receipt
of federal or state capital improvement grants-in-aid. In the event the aggregate face
amount of all tax-exempt obligations (including the Municipal Bond) issued or to be
issued by the Municipality (and all agencies, instrumentalities and other political
subdivisions of the Municipality) during calendar year 2023 exceeds $5,000,000, except
for private activity bonds and additional obligations aggregating no more than
$10,000,000 or such lesser amount attributable to the financing of the construction of
public school capital facilities, the proceeds of each issue of such obligations shall be
invested temporarily and expended in compliance with the rebate requirements of Section
148()(2) and (3) and the Regulations thereunder, as applicable, so as to assure that the
interest paid on such obligations remains excludable from the gross income of the
recipient thereof. The Municipality will expend at least 85% of the Municipal Bond
proceeds, and all of the net income derived from the temporary investment thereof,
within a three-year period calculated from the earlier of the date of issuance of the

5279374.1



Municipal Bond or date of issuance of the Prior Obligations. Proceeds not expended
within three years shall be invested at a vield not in excess of the yield on the Municipal
Bond.

13. The Project is and will be owned by the Municipality and will not be leased
{0 any person which is not a state or local government unit. In addition, the
Municipality will not enter into any contracts or other arrangements, including without
limitation, management contracts, capacity guarantee contracts, take or pay contracts,
or put or pay contracts, pursuant to which such persons have a right to use or make use
of the Project on a basis not available to members of the general public or which
confers special economic benefits on any private person. No private business use of
the Project will be made without an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that
such use will not have an adverse effect on the tax-exempt status of the Municipal
Bond.

14. Any reimbursement of an expenditure made prior to the issue date of the
Municipal Bond or earlier short term financing is pursuant to a declaration of intent. In
addition, any declaration of official intent of the Municipality to reimburse itself out of
Municipal Bond proceeds for prior Project expenditures incurred before the issuance of
the Municipal Bond or short term financing, if carlier, was adopted not later than 60
days after the date of such expenditures. The Project has not been in service for more
than 18 months after the date of original expenditure, and such expenditures being
reimbursed out of Municipal Bond proceeds are not more than three years old.

15. The Municipality will do and perform all acts and things necessary ar
desirable in order to assure that interest paid on the Municipal Bond shall, for purposes
of federal income taxation, be excludable from the gross income of the recipients
thereof, or, if applicable, preserve the Municipal Bond’s tax advantages in the form of
tax credits or interest payment subsidies. The Municipality adopts the Municipal Bond
Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures attached hereto as BExhibit D.

16. In addition to the record-retention requirements of Section 6001 of the
Code, and the Regulations now or hereafter promulgated thereunder, the Municipality
hereby adopts and commits to implement the procedures set forth in Schedule D which
are intended to provide the following;

(a)  Assignment of tax-exempt and tax credit bond, if applicable,
compliance responsibilities to appropriate departments, officers, or employees.

5279374.1



(b)  Establishment and maintenarice of books and records for each
issue of obligations of the Municipality,

(c) Code Section 148 compliant procedures for the investment
of gross proceeds for each issue of the Municipality’s obligations.

(d)  Maintenance of records relating to all allocations of
expenditures of proceeds of each issue of the Municipality’s obligations.

(e) Periodic monitoring of use of proceeds of each issue of the
Municipality’s obligations, the investment and reinvestment of proceeds from
the temporary investments thereof and the use of property acquired or financed
by the proceeds of such obligations.

(D Verification of the foregoing.

17. This certification has been delivered as part of the record of proceedings
and accompanying certificates with respect to the issuance of the Municipal Bond.

18. On the basis of the foregoing, it is not expected that the proceeds of the
Municipal Bond will be used in a manner which would cause the Municipal Bond to be
an “arbitrage bond” or “private activity bond” under Sections 103, 141 and 148 of the
Code. To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no other facts, estimates or
circumstances that would materially change the foregoing conclusions.

19. No other obligations of the Municipality are:

(a)  being sold within fifteen (15) days of the date of this Tax
Certificate;

(b)  Dbeing sold pursuant to a common plan of financing as was
employed in the sale of the Municipal Bond; or

(c)  expected to be paid from substantially the same source of funds,

5279374.1



IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, we have hereunto set our hands on behalf of
the Municipality this 13™ day of October, 2023.

TOWN OF BRANDON

By:

All or a Majority of Its Selectboard

And By:

1ts Treasurer

6279374.1



EXHIBIT Ir
MUNICIPAL BOND POST-ISSUANCE COMPILIANCE PROCEDURES

The following procedures have been adopted by the Municipality, effective as of
the date of issue of the Municipal Bond. These procedures shall be implemented
immediately and shall relate to the Municipal Bond and all currently outstanding and
future debt obligations and financing leases. These procedures are intended to assist the
Municipality in complying with those provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended (the “Code”) relating to (a) the qualified use of proceeds of the
Municipality’s tax-exempt and other tax advantaged bonds and notes and improvements
financed by such proceeds; (b) arbitrage vield restrictions and rebate; (c) remediation of
the effects of “deliberate action” of the Munieipality which results in the disposition,
abandonment or other change in use of property financed by the Municipality’s debt
obligation; and (d) the resolution of matters raised in connection with an audit or
examination of the Municipality’s tax-exempt or tax-advantaged obligations. These
procedures are intended to furnish guidance in matters of Code compliance, and are
subject to revision, modifications and enlargement from time to time.

{1) The municipal official or employee possessing the statutory or contractual
powers, functions and responsibilities of a Chief Financial Officer (to the extent
the same are not exercised by the Municipal Treasurer) shall be responsible for
monitoring Municipal Bond post-issuance compliance (the “Compliance
Official”).

(2) The Compliance Official shall review and implement these procedures in the
manner necessary 1o ensure ongoing compliance with the provisions of the Tax
Certificate. In cotmection therewith such official will become knowledgeable or
consult an advisor experienced in post issuance compliance and will review and
monitor notices, advice and directives as may be received by the Municipality
from its bond counsel, accountants, financial advisors, and governmental sources.
At least once annually the Compliance Official will verify and confirm to the
Municipality that it is in compliance with the terms of the Tax Certificate,
including this Exhibit D,

(3) On or before the first day of June in each year, the Compliance Official shall
confirm that all Municipal property financed by the proceeds of the
Municipality’s obligations continues to be used in the same manner as existed
when such property was first placed into service. Such confirmation shall be

5279374.1



based upon a visual inspection and representations of the public officials under
whose care, custody and control the property is placed.

{4) For so long as the proceeds of any debt obligation of the municipality remains
unexpended, the Compliance Official shall confirm on the first day of June and
the first day of December in each year that such proceeds are deposited or
invested for a “temporary period” as established under Section 148 of the Code,
and the Regulations thereunder. Following the third anniversary of the issuance
of a Municipal obligation, all unexpended proceeds shall be invested so as to
generate a yield no greater than the yield on the corresponding obligation.

(5) The Compliance Official shall confirm, at least annually while there are
unexpended proceeds, that the proceeds of each Municipal obligation shall be
expended in such amounts, at such frequency, and in such intervals to ensure that
the Municipality avails itself of one or more arbitrage rebate exception allowed
under Section 148 of the Code, and the Regulations promulgated thereunder.
Alternatively, if rebate is due, the Compliance Official will engage a consultant to
prepare a report to determine any rebate due. Reports of such confirmation or
rebate shall be prepared no less frequently than annually until proceeds are fully
expended.

(6) With respect to the acquisition and construction of capital improvements financed
with the proceeds of the Municipality’s debt obligations, the Municipality hereby
declares that such proceeds shall be allocated to acquisition and construction
expenditures prior to the expenditure and application of funds from any other
public or private source, A final expenditure report accounting for the use of all
Municipal Bond proceeds and earnings shall be completed no later than 18
months after the Project(s) financed by the Municipal Bond is placed in service.

(7) In the event there is a change of use, abandonment or disposition of property
financed by the proceeds of the Municipal Bond, the Compliance Official shall
immediately consult with the Municipality’s bond counsel and accountants
regarding remedial action. The Municipality thereafter shall endeavor to call and
redeem all or a portion of outstanding debt obligations, the proceeds of which
were expended to finance such property. The proceeds derived from the sale or
other disposition of the financed property shall not be commingled with other
funds of the Municipality, but shall be used to effect the redemption of
obligations, if necessary, the proceeds of which financed such property. Pending

5279374, 1



redemption as called for in this section, such proceeds shall be invested at a yield
no greater than the yield on the obligations to be redeemed.

(8) The Compliance Official shall create and preserve records for the term of the
Municipal Bond and any refunding thereof plus three years documenting the
procedures incident to the authorization and issuance and identifying the proceeds
of each issue of the Municipality’s obligations, the deposit and investment
thereof, the income derived from such deposit and investment, the expenditure of
such proceeds and investment income (containing at a minimum the date, amount
and recipient of each expenditure), payment requisitions, and all rate, fee, charge
and assessment schedules relating to property financed by the Municipality’s
obligations. Such records shall include copies of loan agreements, escrow
agreements, tax certificates, project bid documents, construction and acquisition
contracts, project invoices, project-related bank statements, and documents
related to anticipatory bond financing.

(9) The Compliance Official shall retain all contracts or arrangements with non-

governmental persons relating to the use, control and management of the
Project(s) finance by the Municipal Bond.

5279374.1



Ixhibit A

1, Title of Bond: $3,780,000 Town of Brandon Public Sewer System General
Obligation Registered Bond

Total Principal Amount: $3,780,000

Dated: October 13, 2023

Maturity Date(s) Principal Amount(s) Interest Rate(s)

As per attached specimen bond.

2. Title of Authorizing Resolution(s) or Ordinance(s)

Resolution and Warning of Selectboard: January 11, 2021
Annual Town Meeting: March 2, 2021

Bond Sale Notice: October 3, 2023

Resolution and Certificate of Selectboard: October 9, 2023

3, Project Estimated Date Estimated Date
of Completion All Proceeds Expended
WWTE ' Completed Even Date
4, Other Obligations of Issuer Issued This Calendar Year

Existing Bond Anticipation Note for $3,780,000 (for this Project) was extended
on June 26, 2023

§279374.1



No. 1 $3,780,000
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF VERMONT
COUNTY OF RUTLAND
TOWN OF BRANDON
PUBLIC SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT BOND

The Town of Brandon in the County of Rutland and State of Vermont, promises to pay
to the registered holder hereof the principal sum of

THREE MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED EIGHTY THOUSAND DOLLARS

with interest on the unpaid principal balance from the date hereof at the rate of one and
seventy-five hundredths percent (1.7500%) per annum, principal and interest payable in sixty
(60) equal and consecutive semi-annual installments of $81,270.00 each on April 13 and
October 13 of each year, commencing April 13, 2024, and continuing through October 13,
2053, ‘

Interest and principal are payable in lawful money of the United States at such place
as the registered holder hereof may desgignate in writing.

This bond is issued to defray part of the cost of certain public sewer system
improvements authorized under and by virtue of Chapters 53, 97 and 101 of Title 24 of
Vermont Statutes Annotated, the vote of the Town of Brandon at the annual meeting thereof
March 2, 2021, and resolutions of its Selectboard duly adopted.

This bond is transferable by the registered holder in person or by attorney duly
authorized at the office of the Treasurer of the Town of Brandon.

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to be done
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond have been done, have happened, and have been
performed in regular and due form as required by law and for the payment of this bond and the
interest thereon the full faith and credit of the Town of Brandon are hereby irrevocably
pledged,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Brandon has caused this bond to be executed
by its Selectboard and its Treasurer as of the 13® day of October, 2023.

Treasurer

Cletk

Selectboard
Town of Brandon

§279374.1



$3,780,000

TOWN OF BRANDON
1.750% REGISTERED PUBLIC SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT
BOND NO. 1, DATED OCTOBER 13, 2023; DUE $81,270.00
APRIL 13/0CTOBER 13, 2024/2053

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION

It is hereby certified that the within bond is hercby declared to be a
registered bond with the principal and interest thereon payable semi-specially,
and that such interest, as well as the principal, is payable to the registered
holder thereof, its legal representatives, successors or assigns at the time and
place expressed on the face of this bond.

The within bond is transferable only upon the books of the Treasurer of
the Town of Brandon upon presentation to the Treasurer with a written
assignment duly acknowledged or proved.

Date of Registration: October 13, 2023
Name and Address of
Registered Holder: UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
acting through its Department
of Agriculture
87 State Street #324
Montpelier, VT 05601-0249

Treasurer

6279374.1



$3,780,000 TOWN OF BRANDON
REGISTERED PUBLIC SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT
BOND NO.1, DATED OCTOBER 13, 2023; DUE $81,270.00
APRIL 13/OCTOBER 13, 2024/2053

REGISTRATION RECORD

This is the municipal treasuret's official registration record. It should be kept
carefully with all other permanent municipal records.

1. The treasurer should sign the registration certificate.

2. The registration certificate in this record corresponds with the bond of this
issue bearing the same number,

3. Interest and principal is payable only to the registered bond holder as its
name appears on the back of the bond itself and upon the corresponding page
in this Registration Record.

4. Each transfer of ownership must be evidenced by an assignment in writing
duly signed by the registered owner whose name appears of record.

5. Bach transfer of ownership must be recorded by the muﬁicipal treasurer on
the back of the bond being assigned and also on the correspondingly
numbered page in this transfer record.

6. PAY INTEREST AND PRINCIPAL ONLY TO THE REGISTERED
HOLDER AS ITS NAME APPEARS OF RECORD HERFEIN.

7. Paid bond should be surrendered to the municipal treasurer and cancelled by
writing “PAID” upon the face thereof. A corresponding entry of bond
payments should be made on the appropriate line of this record.

If assistance is needed, communicate with

Elijah D. Emerson

Primmer Piper Eggleston & Cramer PC
P.O. Box 1489

Burlington, VT 05401

(603) 444-4008

54793741



CERTIFICATION TO BE EXECUTED AT LOAN CLOSING

I, the undersigned, as Town Clerk of the Town of Brandon hereby
certify that the Selectboard of such Town is composed of five members, of
whom five, constituting a quorum, were present at a meeting thereof duly
called and held on the 12th day of April, 2021; and that the attached Loan
Resolution was adopted at such meeting by the vote shown thereon. 1 further
certify that as of October 13, 2023, the date of closing of the loan from the
United States Department of Agriculture, said resolution remains in effect and

has not been rescinded or amended in any way.

Dated this 13" day of October, 2023.

Town Clerk

52793741



ATTORNEY’S CERTIFICATE AS TO NO-LITIGATION
The undersigned hereby certifies as follows:

1. That I am the Attorney for the Town of Brandon, Rutland
County, Vermont in connection with an issue of general
obligation bonds of said Town, which proposes to issue and sell
to the United States of America, $3,780,000 principal amount of
Bonds, in the form of general obligation bonds in such amount;
and,

2. As of the date of this certificate, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, after due inquiry, there is no litigation of any nature
now pending or threatened to restrain or enjoin the issuance or
delivery of said Bonds, or in any manner questioning or
affecting directly or indirectly, the validity of said bonds or the
proceedings or authority for the issuance thercof, and neither the
corporate existence nor the boundaries of said Town nor the title
of any of the present officers thereof to their respective office is
being contested.

This certificate is issued and may be relied upon only by the United States
Department of Agriculture Rural Development in connection with the
issnance of the aforesaid bonds and it may not be relied upon by any other
entity or person, nor used for any other purpose.

IN WITNESS WHEREOT, I have hereunto set my hand this 13™ day of
October, 2023.

Attorney

Form FmHA-V'T 1942-2
(Rev. 7-7-82)

52793741



LOAN AGREEMENT

Vermont State Revolving Fund

Lean RF1-223-3.0
Loan Amount: $849,457.00

L Town of Brandon, the Municipality, hereby certifies to the Vermont Municipal Bond Bank
(“Bond Banlk”) that:

(@) Tt will secure all state and federal permits, licenses and approvals necessary to
construct and operate the improvements to be financed by the Loan (the “Project’),
if any, as described in Exhibit A,

(b) It has sstablished, or covenants with the Bond Bank fo establish, by ordinance, rule
or regulation, a rate charge or assessment schedule which will generate annvally sufficient
revenue to pay:

{) Principal, administrative fees and interest of the Municipal Bond, as the
same becomes due; and

(i)  reasonably anticipated cost of operating and maintaining the improvements
to be financed by the Loan, if any, and the system of which is a part;

(©) It has duly established a fund under Title 24 of the Vermont Statutes Annotated, or
by other means permitted by law which, for so long as the Municipal Bond shall remaln
outstanding, shall be maintained and replenished from time to time, and used solely to
repair, replace, improve and enlarge the improvement to be financed by the Loan, if any.

2. The Municipality shall make finds sufficient to pay the principal, administrative fees and
interest as the same matures (based wpon the Maturity Schedule appended hereto as Exhibit C)
available to the Bond Bank at least five business days priot to each principal payment date,

3 The Bond Bank and Municipality agree that Loan proceeds will be paid to the Municipality
as Project costs are incurred and paid by the Municipality over the course of the Project, but in no
event shall payments be made more often than monthly, and only on Municipality’s certification,
through its authorized representative, that such costs have been paid.

4, The Municipality is obligaied to make the principal, administrative fee and interest portion
of the Municipal Bond payments scheduled by the Bond Bank on an annual basis. The
Municipality may prepay the Loan at its option without penalty.

5. Simultaneously with the delivety of the Municipal Bond and Certificate of Registration
(Exhibit C) to the Bond Bank, the Municipality shall furnish to the Bond Bank an opinion of bond
counsel satisfactory to the Bond Bank which shall set forth among other things the unquatified



approval of said Bond(s) then being delivered to the Bond Bank and that said Bond(s) will
constitute valid and binding obligations of the Municipality.

6. The Municipality shall be obligated to inform in writing to the Bond Bank, or such agent
designated by the Bond Bank, at least thirty days prior to each principal payment date of any
changes to the name of the official or address to whom invoices for the payment of principal,
administrative fees and interest should be sent.

7. The period of performance for this agresment begins upon execution and eads five years
after execution.

8. Notwithstanding paragtaph 15 hereof, prior to payment of the amount of the Loan, or any
portion thereof, the Bond Bank shall have the right to cancel all or any part of its obligations
hereunder and after payment of any portion thereof to require a refund of amounts paid if:

(&)  Any representation made by the Municipality to the Bond Bank in connection with
its application for a loan or additional loans shall be incorrect or incomplete in any maferial
respect; or

(b)  The Municipality has violated commitments made by it in its application and
supporiing documents or has violated any of the terms of this Loan Agreement.

9. The Municipality shall at all times comply with all applicable federal and state
requitements pertaining to the Project, including but not limited to requirements of Federal Clean
Water Act, Title 24 of the Vermoent Statutes Annotated, and the list of Federal Laws and
Authorities included as Fxhibit B, The enumeration of the Federal Laws and Authorities in Exhibit
B shall not be construed as a waiver by the Municipality of any exemption or exception,
Jurisdictional or otherwise.

10,  If any provisions of this Loan Agteement shall for any reason be held to be invalid or
unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect any of the
remaining provisions of this Loan Agreement and this Loan Agreement shall be construed and
enforced as if such invalid ot unenforceable provision had not been contained herein,

11.  This Loan Agreement may be exgcuted in one or more counterparts, any of which shall be
regarded for all purposes as an original and all of which constitute but one and the same instrument.
Each party agrees that it will execute any and afl documents or other instruments, and take such
other actions us sre necessary, to give effect to the terms of this Loan Agreement,

12, Nowaiver by either party of any term or condition of the Loan Agreement shall be deemed
or construed as a waiver of any other terms ot conditions, nor shall a waiver of any breach be
deemed to constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach, whether of the same or of a different
section, subsection, paragraph, clause, phrase, or other provision of this Loan Agreement. Any
delay in exercising rights cr requirements of the Loan Agreement does not constitute & waiver of
such rights or requirements.



13, The Municipality agrees to indemnify and hold the Bond Bank, the state, its officials,
agents, and employees harmless from and against any and all claims, suits, actions, costs, and
damages resulting from the negligent performance or non-performance by the Municipality or any
of its officials, agents, or employees of the Municipality's obligations under this Agreement, as it
may be amended or supplemented from time to time, It is further understood that such indemnity
shall not be limited by an insurance coverage.

14.  The Municipality agrees that the Loan will be adjusted upon final audit to an amount equal
to or less than the project costs determined eligible by the Department of Esnvironmental
Conservation and recommended to the Bond Bank for loan participation,

15.  The Municipality agrees that if actual final eligible costs are less than the amount paid
under the Loan Agreement, repayment of the excess funds will be made within sixty days of the
request made by the Department of Environmental Conservation,

16.  Increases, amendments, or modifications to the project during construction will be
processed for record keeping purposes only, except for the addition of major approved Project
Elements, Fxhibit A, The Loan Agreement will also be amended upon completion of the project
based upon final audited eligible costs, and any increases in the Loan will be made contingent
upon availability of funds. All Project tecords will be retained by the Municipality and made
available for state inspection upon request for three years after Project completion ot until any
audit questions have been resolved, whichever is later,

17.  The Municipality will obtain flood insurance for any insurable portion of the Project.

18, The Municipality agrees to use the loan proceeds solely for the project for which the loan
is made and any approved amendments theteto. The Municipality further agrees to make prompt
payment to the contractors and to apply any interest teceived to the Project. Once payment has
been made to coniractors, the applicant shall submit a payment request to the Department of
Environmental Conservation (DEC). Funds will be disbursed from Federal Award ID Number
CS500001## (## equals last two digits of award year). Upon disbursement, DEC will notify the
Munieipality of the standard terms and conditions applicable based on the exact amount of federal
funds disbursed and relevant capitalization grant being drawn down, Please seo

hitps://dec.vermont.gov/water-investment/water-financing/srf/reimbursement-help ~ for  the

standard terms and conditions. If the foregoing link is not accessible, contact DEC for assistance,

19.  The terms of this Loan Agreement shall be controlling over those of any prior Agreement
with respect to this Loan Agreement, However, this Loan Agreement shall not otherwise supersede
the terms of any other agreements between the Municipality and the State.

20.  The Municipality agrees to furnish to the Bond Bank such financial statements as the Bond
Bank may reasonably request, which statements and supporting records shall be prepared and
maintained in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).



21.  This agreement will be funded by approximately 80 percent federal funds. These funds are
being awarded in accord with the Federal Clean Water State Revolving Fund, CFDA number
66.458, under the authority of the Environmental Protection Agency. This is not a research and
development award. For any accounting year in which the Municipality expends Loan proceeds
and other Federal funds of $750,000.00 or more from all Federal sources, the Municipality shall
have an audit performed in accord with the Federal Single Audit Act and furnish a copy to the
Vermont Department of Environmental Conservation within 9 months of the end of Municipality’s
accounting period.

22, By acceptance of this Agreement, the Municipality agrees to complete a Subrecipient
Annual Report as provided by the Department of Finance. Prior to submitting the Subrecipient
Annual Report, the Municipality must review previous fiscal year disbursements from the
Facilities Engineering Division to determine the actual amount of federal funds disbursed from the
loan proceeds, The Subrecipient Annual Report must then be submitted to the State of Vermont
Department of Finance within 45 days after its fiscal year end, informing the State whether or not
a single audit is required for the prior fiscal year, If a single audit is required, the Municipality will
submit a copy of the audit report to the Vermont Departmont of Environmental Conservation
within 9 months of its fiscal year end. If a single audit is not required, only the Subrecipient Annual
Report to the State Department of Finance is required.

23.  The Municipality understands that the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act, which is codified
at Subchapter TV of Chapter 31 of Title 40 of the United States Code and U.8. Department of
Labor Memorandum No, 208 (“Memorandum 208™), may apply to the Project, and-the
Municipality certifies and agrees that with respect to the Project, it has complied and will continue
to comply with the requirements of the Davis-Bacon Act and Memorandum 208, as applicable.

24, The effective date of the Loan Agreement is the execution date of the General Obligation Bond,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement,

Attest: VERMONT MUNICIPAL BOND BANK
s ecrétaw
Attest: Town of Brandon
By:

Clerk Chair of the Governing Body

And by:



List of Loan Exhibits

EXHIBIT A: Project description and conditions
EXHIBIT B: List of Federal Laws and Awthorities
EXHIBIT C:; General Obligation Bond

EXHIBIT D: Resolution and Certificate

Date

Treasurer




EXHIBIT A

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND CONDITIONS FOR THIS AGREEMENT

Description:

This construction loan is for the additional construction funds needed for the wastewater treatment facility
refurbishment and upgracle. Censtruction is being funded primarily by USDA and these additional
construction funds are needed in order to make project funding whole post bid, This {oan alse consolidates
all of the Step 1 and IT loan funds and additional subsidy that has been provided for this project.

Conditions:

1y
2)

3

Repayment of this loan shall commence one (1) year after completion of the project.

The CWSRF program has determined that the expected weighted average uselul life of the funded assets
equals or exceeds the loan term.

The Applicant shall, as a condition of the loan, provide the Department with a digitally formatted copy
of any plan or surveys developed with funds awarded under the loan, if the Applicant or any
subeontractor develops plans or surveys in digital format, By acceptance of the loan, the Applicant
agrees to pass through this requirement to any subcentracts awarded and funded by the loan. This
condition is included pursuant to Section 56 of Act 233 of 1994. Such digital formats are subject to the
Federal Freedom of Information Act and the Stafe Access to Public Records and Document Statute and,
unless otherwise restricted, the Dopartment will release copies of such information to the general public
upon request. It shall be acceptable to submit read only copies ot copies marked archival copies only.
The Applicant, by acceptance of this loan agrees not to copyright any plans or surveys developed
pursuant to this action. Acceptable clectronic formats include pdf and pdf/A.



" EXHIBIT B

LIST OF FEDERAL LAWS AND AUTHORITIES WHERE APPLICABLE

ENVIRONMENTAL;
e “American Iron and Steel” requirerents of P.L. 113~76 the Consolidated Appropristions Act of 2014
e Archeological and Historic Presetvation 16 USC §469a-1
¢ Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act, 16 USC §668-668¢
¢ Clean Air Act, 42 USC §7401
s Coastal Barrier Resources Act, 16 USC §3501
s Coastal Zone Management 16 USC §1451
« Davis-Bacon Act (40 CFR '31.36(i)}(5))
¢ Davis Bacon and Related Acts Wage Rate Requirements (29 CFR 5.5)
e Endangered Species Act, 16 USC §1531
s Floodplain Management, Executive Order 11988, as amended by Executive Order 12148
s Protection of Wetlands, Executive Ordet 11990 (1977) as amended by Fxecutive Order 12608 (1997)
« Environmental Justice, Executive Order 12898
¢ Protection and Enhancement of the Cultural Environment, Executive Order 11990 {1977, as amended

% 92 & & &5 & & = »

by Executive Qrder

Farmland Protection Policy Act, 7 USC §4201

Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act, 16 USC §661

Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act, 16 USC §1801 et seq.
Marine Mammal Protection Act, 16 USC §7703 et seq.

Migratory Bird Act 16 USC Chaptoer 7, Subchapter 1I: Migratory Bird Treaty
National Historic Preservation Act 54 USC § 300101 et seq.

Rivers and Harbors Act, 33 USC §403

Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 USC §300f

Wild and Scenic Rivers Act 16 USC §1271

ECONOMIC:

L ]
»

" Demonstration Cities and Metropolitan Development Act of 1966, P, 89-754 as amended

Section 306 of the Clean Air Act and Section 508 of the Clean Watet Act, including Executive Order
11738, Administration of the Clean Alr Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act with Respect
to Federal Contracts, Grants, or Loans

SOCIAL LEGISLATION:

Age Discrimination Act, PLL 94-135

Civil Rights Act of 1964, PL 88-352

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise, 49 1ISC § 47113 - Minority and disadvantaged business
participation



Equal Employment Oppottunity, Executive Order 11264

Women’s and Minority Business Enterprise, Executive Orders 11625 and 12138

Section 13 of PL. 92-500; Prohibition against sex discrimination under the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act

Rehabilitaticn Act of 1973, PL 93-112 (including Executive Orders 11914 and 11250)

MISCELLANEGUS AUTHORITY:

. & v ® o

Exocutive Order 12549 - Debarment and Suspension

Trafficking and Violence Protection Act of 2000 (P.L. 106-386)

Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, PL 91-646

Signage requirements per 2015 EPA guidance

2 CFR 200.216 and section 889 of Public Law 115-232, Prohibition of certain telecommuaication and
video surveillance services or equipment.

Build America, Buy America (BABA) provisions of the Federal Infrastructure lavestment and Jobs
Act (I1JA)



EXHIBIT C

UNITED STATES OF AMFRICA

STATE QF VERMONT
- Town of Brandon

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND

$849,457.00

‘The Town of Brandon (hereinafter called the “Municipality™), a body corporate and a political subdivision of
the State of Vermont, promises to pay to the Vermont Municipal Bond Bank, or registered assigns, the not-to-
exceed sum of $849,457.00 with a preliminary interest at the rate of 0.00% per annum and with a preliminary
administrative fee of 2.00%, subject to change based on final disbursed value, beginning on 9/1/2024 as follows:

Viormont EPA Glean Watsr Siate Fevalving Fund

.

e o R

Brandon Town, Vermont

T

Loan RF1{-223-3.0

Propared on 4/10/2023

Loan Terms L

Ropayment Payment Pringipal Princival Princlpal Interest Adminlstrative Total
Date Numtber ;  Dus Payment _Forglven | Payment Faeg ) Payment
_ L BagdbTony 0 PlATAge SeT2000 1046d.200
500,310.041 21,904,481 0.00 Anoo8.20]
L A7BA406.5B; 22,342,85 0.00; 0,00 9,588,14
3111, 488,089,083 22,760,40 0.00; 0.00¢ 9,121,28
912028 433,273.53 25,245, 15 0.00: 0.00: 8,606.47
LoBMaoeel 8 r 41002844 23,710,006 0.00; 0.00: 8,200,867
9/1/2030 386,418,35 24,184,20 : 7,726,837
oiszosl 382,134.08 24,657,986 7,242,880
[ 488,08 26,181.34) 8

) aodpal 586457 .
/142004 11 . pB6,640.17 .28,577.86 . 8,732.80 0.66
of1sz08s] 12 260,462 31 28,701,41 £,200.28 31,010.68
ori2ce! 3 255,760.00 97,235.44 4,676.22 31,910,868
ofigayl 14 G 208,525,46 27,780,15 4,130,581 31,810.68!
0/1/2038 15 178, 745,31 28,336,758 3,574.91 31,910.68
9420501 16 160,409,668 28,802,47] 3.008,19 31,910,68,
9H120607 17 wd2lBorosy o 2eds0ba 24304 81,810.86;
orifzodi’ 18 92,028.67) 30,070.131 Jlp40.88 L.31,010.68!
LBiz0sas dg 81,958.44 $0,671.58 1,230,143 31,910,884
Sii204al 20 .B1,284.91 31,284.91 625,70 i
£21,785,00 ¥27,672.00 116,456.74

H

For planning purposes enly. Flgures iibj

ect to change hased on actual dl?bursements.




EXHIBIT C

This Bond ig payable in lawful money of the United States at M&T Bank in the City of Burlington, State of
Vermont. Repayment terms shall comply with 24 V.S.A. Chapter 120, §4755 which prohibits deferral of
payment. Final payment of this Bond shall be made upon surrender of this Bond for cancellation.

This Bond is issued by the Municipality for the purpose of financing of infrastructure improveménts under and
by virtue of Title 24, Vermont Statutes Annotated, and a vote of the legal voters of the Municipality duly passed
on 2/3/2023. '

This Bond is transferable only upon presentation to the Treasurer of the Municipality with a written agsignment
duly acknowledged or proved. No transfer hereof shall be effectual unless made on the books of the
Municipality kept by the Treasurer as transfer agent and noted hercon by the Treasurer with a record of payments
as provided hereon,

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to be done precedent to and in the
issuing of this Bond have been done, have happened, and have been performed in regular and due form, as
required by such law and vote, and for the assessment, collection and payment hereon of a {ax to pay the same
when due the full faith and credit of the Municipality are hereby irrevocably pledged.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the Municipality has caused this Bond to be signed by its Treasurer, and a
majotity of its Selectboard and its seal to be affixed hereto,

Town of Brandon

By

Majority of its Governing Body

Date

Treasurer



EXHIBIT C $849,457.00

Town of Brandon

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION

It is hereby certified that this Bond is a fully registered Bond, payable only to the holder of record as appears of
record in the office of the Treasurer of the issuing Municipality. This Bond may be teansforred by presentation
of the same with an assignment in writing sighed by the registered holder. Presentation shall be made to the
Treasurer of the Municipality at his office and he shall record such transfer in his records and on the Bond. The
name and address of the original registered owner of this Bond is

Vermont Bond Bank, 100 Bank St, Suite 401, Burlington, VT 05402,

Treasurer



EXHIBIT D

RESQLUTION AND CERTIFICATE
(General Obligation)

(Vermont Clean Water State Revolving Fund)

WHEREAS, at meetings of the municipal legislative body of the Town of Brandon (herein called the
“Municipality”) at each of which all or & majority of the members were present and voting, which meetings
were duly noticed, called and held as appears of record, it was found and determined that the public interest and
necessity required certain public wastewater improvements described in Exhibit A, and it was further found and
determined that the cost of making such public improvements would be too great to be paid out of ordinary
annval income and revenue, and that a proposal for providing such improvements and the issvance-of bonds of
the Municipality to pay for its share of the cost of the sams was submitted to the legal voters at meetings thereof,
and it ordered, all of which action is hereby ratified and confirmed; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the foregoing action, at a meeting of the Municipality which was warned and held at
the place and fime appointed therefor, there was submitted a proposition to be voted upon by ballot between the
hours stated in the Warning, all as appears by reference; and

WHEREAS, the said Warning was duly recorded, published and posted, and said meeting was duly convened
and conducted, all as appears of record, and which proceedingg are hereby ratified and confirmed in all respeocts;
and

WHEREAS, immediately upon closing of the polls and after counting of the ballots cast, the results as set forth
were declared by the moderator, all as appears of record, and putsuant to which the Municipality is cartying
forward the authorized improvements and pursuing the same diligently to completion; and

WIHEREAS, the Municipality has applied for financial assistance in making the authorized improvements which
application has been approved by the Department of Environmental Conservation and the Vermont Municipal
Bond Bank, as ovidenced by the Funding Application Approval, the terms and conditions of which are found
in Exhibit A; and ‘

WHEREAS, pursuant to powers vested in them by law the said governing board is about to enter into a Loan
Agreement on behalf of the Municipality with the Vermont Municipal Bond Bank respecting a Loan from said
Bank in the amount of $849,457.00 to be discounted by the amount of up to $327,672, repayable with inferest
at the rate of 0.00% per annum, together with an administrative fee of 2.00%, -

AND WHEREAS, the Bond to be given by the Municipality to the Vermont Municipal Bond Bank at the time
of receiving the proceeds of said Loan shall be substantially in the form found in Exhibit C;

THEREFORE, be it tesolved that the Governing Body proceed forthwith to cause said Bond to be executed and
delivered to the Vermont Municipal Bond Bank upon the price and terms stated, and be registered as the law
providos; and



EXHIBIT D

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Bond when issued and delivered pursuant to law and this Resolution
shall be the valid and binding obligation of the said Municipality, payable according to law and the terms and
tenor thereof from unlimited ad valorem taxes on the grand list of taxable property of said Municipality as
established, assessed, apportioned and provided by law; and

BEIT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in addition to all other taxes, there shall annually be assessed and collected
in the manner provided by law each year until the Bond, or any bond or bonds issued to refund or teplace the
same, is fully paid, a tax, charge or assessmont sufficient to pay the note and bond or bonds as the same shall
become due; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that execution of the above-referenced Loan Agreement between the
Municipality and the Yermont Municipal Bond Bark is hereby authorized, the presiding officer of the legislative
body and Treasurer of the borrower being directed to execute said Loan Agreement on behalf of the
Municipality and the legislative branch thereof; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Municipality expressly incorporates into this Resolution each and
every term, provigion, covenant and representation set forth at length in Exhibit A to be delivered in connection
with the issuance and sale of the Bond, execution and delivery of each of which is hereby authorized, ratified
and confirmed in all respects, and the covenants, representations and undertakings set forth at length in said
Loan Agreement are incorporated herein by reference; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all acts and things heretofore done by the lawfully constituted officers of
the Municipality, and any and alf acts or proceedings of the Municipality and of its Governing Body, in, about
or concerning the improvements hereinabove described and of the issuance of evidence of debt in connection
therewith, are heteby ratified and confirmed,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in connection with the pending sale of the Bond in the face amount of
$849,457.00 to the Vermont Municipal Bond Bank, execution and delivery of the Bond, this Resolution
Certificate, Loan Agreement and incidental documents, all attached hereto, are authorized; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that M&T Bank in the City of Burlington, Yermont, is hereby designated the
Municipality's paying agent with respect to the Bond and the Loan Agreement,

And we, the undessigned officers, as indicated, hereby certify that we as such officers have sigaed the Bond
payable as aforesaid, and reciting that it is issued under and pursuant to the vote herein above mentioned, and
we also certify that the Bond is duly registered in the offics of the Treasurer of the Municipality as prescribed
by law.

- And we, the said officers of the Municipality, hereby cettify that we are the duly chosen, qualified and acting
officers of the Municipality as undersigned; that the Bond is issued pursuant to said authority; that no other
proceedings relating thereto have been taken; and that no such authority or proceeding has been repealed or
amended, ‘



EXHIBITD

We further certify that no litigation is pending ot threatened affecting the validity of the Bond nor the levy and
collection of taxes, charges or assessments to pay it, nor the works of improvement financed by the proceeds of
the Bond, and that neither the corporate existence of the Municipality nor the title of any of us to our respective
offices is being questioned.

ATTEST: Town of Brandon

By:

Clerk

Majority of its Governing Body

And By:

Its Treasurer



10/06/23 TOWN OF BRANBON Accounts Payable Page 1 of 5
01:18 pm Check Warrant Report # 63692 Current Prior Next FY Invoices Jacolyn
All Invoices For Check Acct 01 (10 General Fund} 10/09/23 To 10/09/23

Inveige Involce Description Amount  Check Check

Vendor Date Invoice Number Account Paid Number Date

301024 AAR POLICE SUPPLY 09/21/23 ammunition 10-5-14-30120 120.00 52959 10/05/23
31657 Professional Suppliss

310599 AMERICAN WINDOW CLEANING 10/02/23 sept windows 10-5-22-43100 60.00 52960 10/09/23
71668 Town Office

100856 APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNO 08/20/23 solencid valve ceil 10-5-15-41160 11%.70 52961 10/0%/23
7027939174 HW Maint. Supplies-Vehicl

100028 ARTHUR'S AUTO 09/1%/23 repairs to wood chipper 10-5-15-44130 1473,52 52962 10/09/23
061249 Tree Removal/Planting

100255 BRANDON FIRE DISTRICT #1 10/02/23 Sept portion of pymts 90-5-15-90600 120834,02 52963 10/09/23
9/307/23 Paid To BFD No 1

100275 BRANDON FREE PUBLIC LIBRA 09/28/23 appropriation 10-5-25-70470 T666.67 52964 10/09/23
OCT 2023 Brandon Library

100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORK 09/28/23 roof brush 10-5-15-41110 22.77 52965 10/09/23
4643/3 New Kquipment-Misc, Tools

100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORK 09/28/23 putty knife 10-5-22~43080 17.18 52068 10/09/23
4651/3 Highway Bldg Maint

100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORK 10/02/23 duct tape 20-5-55-43160 13.99 52865 10/09/23
5308/3 Maint. Supplies - General

100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORE L0/02/23 hose/couplings/clamps 20-5-55-43160 34.76 52865 10/09/23
5324/3 Maint. Supplies —~ General

100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORK 10/04/23 hose, nozzle 10-5-22-43080 73.57 52963 10/09/23
5552/3 Righway Bldg Maint

100310 BRANDON SENIOR CITIZENS C 08/28/23 appropriation 10-5-25--70480 1125.00 52966 10/09/23
OCT 2023 Senior Citizen Center

311203 BRUCE MEACHAM PROPERTY MA 09/22/23 Newton Rd-Mob pmt #1 56-5—-80-50100 50000.00 52948 09/25/23
391 FEMA-July 2023 Newton Rd

301503 CHAMPLAIN VALLEY FUELS 09/18/23 diesel fuel 10-5~15-4E130 835,91 52967 10/09/23
501673 Fuel - Vehicles HW

301503 CHAMPLAIN VALLEY FUELS 09/27/23 diesel fuel 10-5-15-41130 1235,39 52967 10/09/23
502295 Fuel - Vehicles HW

310097 COMCAST 09/27/23 service: 10/04 - 11/03 10--5-10-42100 623,95 52968 10/0%/23
TO 09/27/23 Telephone Exp. Admin.

310097 COMCAST 09/21/23 gervice: 09/28 - 10/27 20-5-55-42100 204 .35 52969 10/08/23
WW 09/21/23 Wastewater Telephone

310037 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNLICATIO 09/18/23 service! Aug 1B to Sep 17 10-5~22-43150 88.40 52970 10/08/23
TE 0%/18/23 Pown Hall Repair/Maint.

310177 COTT SYSTEMS, INC. 09/28/23 oct host: fee 10-5-13-30123 295.00 52971 10/03/23
155359 Recoxds FPreservation

310733 DENTON & SON L0/01/23 dumpstex 20~-5-BB-50180 450.00 52972 10/09/23
SEPT 2023 Sludge Disposal

300466 DUNDON PLUMBING & HEATING 09/19/23 poxtable toilets 10-5-18-690100 136.00 52973 10/08/23
85717 Seminary Hill

300466 DUNDON PLUMBING & HEATING 09/19/23 portable toilets 10-5-18-43130 130.00 52973 10/09/23
83717 Estabrook

100494 ENDYNE INC 02/29/23 testing 20-5-55-22120 45.00 52574 10/09/23
464200 Teating

100494 ENDYNE INC 10/03/23 testing 20-5-55-22120 250.00 52874 10/09/23
465133 Testing

300187 FLORENCE CRUSHED STCNE 09/16/23 plant mix 10-%-15-46140 407.27 52975 10/09/23

233813

Gravel



10/06/23

TOWN OF BRANDON Accounts Payable

Page 2 of 5

01:18 pm Check Warrant Report # 63692 Current Prior Next FY Invoices Jacolyn
All Invoices Woxr Check Acct 01(10 General Fund) 10/09/23 To 104/09/23
Invoice Invoice Description Amount Check Check
Vendor Date Involce Number Account Paid  Number Late
200187 FLORENCE CRUSHED STONE 09/23/23 plant mix 10-5-15-46L40 3580.53 52975 10/08/23
233857 Gravel
311128 GREEN MOUNTAIN GARAGE 09/15/23 repairs to 2011 Workstar 10-5-15-41%180 1163.33 52976 10/05/23
203730 HW Outside Maint. - Vehic
311128 GREEN MOUNTAIN GARAGE 09/18/22 brake cleaner, towels 10-5-15-41160 26,77 52976 10/08/23
203881 HW Maint. Supplies-Vehicl
311128 GREEN MOUNTAIN GARAGE 09/18/23 headlights 10-5-15—-41160 19,98 52976 10/09/23
. 203889 HW Maint. Supplies-Vehicl
311128 GREEN MOUNTIAIN GARAGE 09/25/23 bearing 10-5-15-41160 93,62 52976 10/08/23
204208 HW Maint. Supplies-Vehicl
311128 GREEN MOUNTAIN GARAGE 10/02/23 blister pack capsules 10-5-15-41160 19,50 52976 10/08/23
204462 HW Maint, Supplies-Vehicl
311128 GREEN MOUNTAIN GARAGE 10/02/23 battery, scap, gloves 10-5-15-41160 198.97 52976 10/09/23
204485 HW Maint, Supplies-Vehicl
100559 HACH COMPANY 09/19/23 pH gel probe 20-5-55-43160 422.00 52977 10/09/23
. 13745257 Maint. Supplies - General
100559 HACH COMPANY 09/20/23 pH meter 20-5-55-41110 B0E.00 52977 10/08/23
13746310 Hew Equipment-Misc Tools
301065 HARDING, MARTIN 09/05/23 mulch bales 10-5-15-46130 640.00 52978 10/09/23
732106 Culverts
300600 HOLLAND COMPANY INC 09/27/23 sodium bisulfite 20-5-55--50140 2534.02 52979 10/09/23
PI-23788 Scdium Bisulfite
311204 HOPKINS, SETH 09/29/23 mileage, EnergyCom prints 10--5-12-40100 186.30 52980 10/09/23
8/29/23 Energy Cm Public Qutreach
311204 HOPKINS, SETH 09/28/23 mileage, EnergyCom prints 10-5-10-10310 160.47 52980 10/09/23
9/29/23 Travel & Expenses
301025 IMPACT K'IRE SERVICES LLC 09/12/23 fire extinguishers 10-5-14-30120 560.00 52981 10/09/23
250234461 Professional Supplies
300645 LAMOTYE COMPANY 09/26/23 reagent 20-5-55-30120 87,55 52882 10/09/23
777683 Professional Supplies
100029 LAWES AGRICULTURAL SERVI{ 09/22/23 grass seed 56-5-10-50100 40,00 52983 10/09/23
32187 Arnold Dist Rd — paving
311176 LILY WHITE CLEANING SERVI 10/04/23 cleaning 10-5-22-10130 367,50 52984 10/03/23
100423 Admin Custodian
311178 LILY WHITE CLEANING SERVI 10/04/23 cleaning 10-5-22-10120 152.50 52984 10/08/23
100423 PD Custodian
310408 LINSTAR 09/13/23 1D cards 10-5-14-10320 12,80 52985 10/08/23
115218-R Clothing Aliowance
301083 MVE SELECT CARE INC 10/05/23 Sept 2023 - HRA 20-5-55-10218 5.00 52986 10/08/23
2023-09 HRA WW
301083 MVP SELECT CARE INC 10/05/23 Sept 2023 - HRA 10-5-22-10218 2.50 52986 10/08/23
2023-03 HRA
301083 MVEP SELECT CARE INC 10/05/23 Sept 2023 - HRA 10-5-18-10218 2,50 52986 10/08/23
2023-0a HRA
301083 MVP SELECT CARE INC 10/05/23 Sept 2023 ~ HRA 10-5-15-10218 5.00 52986 10/08/23
2023-09 HRA HR
301083 MVP SELECT CARE INC 10/05/23 Sept 2023 ~ HRA 10-5-14-10218 10.00 52986 10/08/23
2023-09 HRA ED
301083 MVP SELECT CARE INC 10/05/23 ‘Sept 2023 — HRA 10-5~13-10218 5.00 52986 10/08/23
2023-09 HRA



10/06/23

TOWN OF BRANDON Accounts Payable

Page 3 of 5

$Ll:18 pm Check Warrant Report # 83692 Current Priox Next FY Invoices Jacolyn
All Invoices For Check Acct 01(1l0 General Fund) 10/09/23 To 10/09/23
Inveige Inveice Dascription Amount  Cheak Check
Vendox Date Invoice Number Account Paid  Number Date
301083 MVP SELECT CARE INC 10/05/23 Sept 2023 —~ HRA 10-5~10-10218 5.00 52986 10/09/23
2023-09 HRA Admin
310795 NATIONAL BUSINESS TECHNOL 09/22/23 sexvice contract printers 10-5-10-30130 57.51 52987 10/09/23
INGE69658 Serwvice Contracts
310795 NATIONAL BUSINESS TECHNOL 09/22/23 service contract copiexs 10-5-10-30130 130,00 52887 10/09/23
IN569659 gervice Contracts
100788 NEW ENGLAND MUNICIPAL RES 10/04/23 Lisa - Sept 10-5-11-22140 1116.25 52988 10/09/23
53649 Property Assessor
100274 PETTY CASH — TOWN OFFICE 10/04/23 postage listexrs/zoning 10-5-12-30132 42.53 = —— /===
OCT 2023 Planning/Zoning Postage
100274 ERETTY CASH — TOWN OFFICE 10/04/23 postage listers/zoning 10-5-10-30132 54.00 ———————— ——ff——
OCT 2023 Postage ﬁxpenses
311136 PHENOVA, INC. 10/02/23 quality assurance tests 20-5-55-30120 398.90 52989 10/09/22
198123 Professional Bupplies
300375 RUTLAND CITY L0/02/23 August szludge processing 20-5-BE—50180 6300.00 52990 10/09/22
34495 SLUDG Sludge Disposal
100491 RUTLAND HERALD 130/01/23 DRB hearing notice 10--5~12-30310 100,40 52991 10/09/23
00135134 Legal Advertising
310418 SILLOWAY NETWORKS INC 10/01/23 tech support 10-5-10-30134 150,00 82992 10/09/23
42219527 Technical Support
310418 SILLOWAY NETWORKS INC 10/01/23 monthly monitoring 10~5-10-30134 762.00 52992 10/09/23
' 42219528 Technical Support
310397 SOUTHWORTH-MILYTON, INC, 09/15/23 door latch 10-5-15-41160 112.39 52993 10/09/23
INV3025495 HY Maint, Supplies-Vehicl
310%21 STEARNS SERVICES LLC 09/27/23 consulting fee 10-5-10-30130 360.00 52984 10/0%/23
1206 Service Contracts
310921 STEARNE SERVICES LLC 10/03/23 consulting fee 10-5-10-30130 135.00 52994 10/05/23
’ 1208 Service Contracts
300592 SUBURBAN PROFPANE, L.F. 09/25/23 propane @ Newton p.s. 20-5-55-42110 207.47 52995 10/08/23
5408642 LP Gas - Bldgs
101071 THE BOOKSTORE 10/03/23 MERP @rant-Book order 56-5-86-20500 1199.94 52896 10/09/23
20-1 Enargy Comm-MERP
311182 TI SERVICES 03/19/23 repair moweix head 10-5-15-44120 250.00 52697 10/09/23
03/1%/23 Roadside Mower- Maint
101086 TOWNLINE EQUIPMENT SALES, 10/02/23 bucket teeth, flex pins 10-5-15-41160 152.05 52898 10/09/23
Iri17192 HY Maint. Supplies—Vehicl
100729 TREASURY OPERATIONS DIVIS 10/02/23 marriages july thru sept 10-2-00-02113 845.00 5289% 10/09/23
SERT 2023 Marriage Lic, Fees to Sta
310490 05 BANK 09/15/23 Bond pymta- Nov 2023 20-5~-55-60800 74,50 —rm————— —— =i
HOV 23 USDA Bond Loan #8 Interes
310490 TS BANK 09/15/23 Bond pymta- Nov 2023 20-2-00-02525 4229.08 ——————— —— J=i—=
NOV 23 CARVER REFI 2012 SERIES 5
310490 US BANK 09/15/23 Bond pymts— Nov 2023 55-1-00-01600 -41760.00 —————mmm -
NOV 23 Amt: for Long Terxrm Debt
310490 US BANK 09/15/23 Bond pymts— Hov 2023 10-5-19-60500 51916.04 ———-m-—— —— -
Nov 23 2016 Segment 6 Bond
310490 US BANK 0%/15/23 Bond pymts— Nov 2023 55-2-00-~02517 41760,90 ——————— —— /==
Nov 23 Infrastructure Bond
310490 US BANK 09/15/23 Bond pymts— Nov 2023 55-1-00-01600 ~19750,00 ———————m —— [t ==

NOov 23

Amt for Long Term Debt



10/08/23 TCWN OF BRANDON Accounks Payable Page 4 of 5
01:18 pin Check Warrant Report # 63692 Current Prior Next FY Invoices ) Jacolyn
All Inveices For Check Acct Q1 (10 General Fund} 10/09/23 To 10/09/23

Inveoilce Invelice Description Ameunt Check Check

Vendor Date Inveice Number Account Paid HNumber Date

310490 US BANK 08/15/23 Bond pymts- Nov 2023 55~-2-00-02512 135000.00 ———————= —— =
NOV 23 Long Term Debt Bond

310490 US BANK 09/15/23 Bond pymta- Nov 2023 10-5-19-48140 141936.,26 ———————= ~— f——i—=
Nov 23 RT 7 Town Share -2008

310490 US BANK 09/15/23 Bond pymts- Nov 2023 55-2-00-02516 19750,00 -—————— —— =i
NOV 23 PD VT Muniepal Bond

310450 US BANK 0%/15/23 Bond pymts- Nov 2023 55-~1-00-01600 ~135000,00 —-—————— —— /== f——
Nov 23 Amt for Long Term Debt

310430 US BANK 08/15/23 Bond pymts- Nov 2023 10-5~19-60410 21310,45 ——————— ——/f—= /=
NOV 23 PD Bond Payment

31049¢ U8 BANK 09/15/23 Bond pymts— Nov 2023 20-5-55-61000 3406.47 ———mm—— ——f——f—
NOV 23 UsSDA Bond Loan #9 Interes

310490 US BANK 09/15/23 Bend pymts- Nov 2023 20-2-00-02524 19261.16 ~—mrw—m— —=f——
NOV 23 SEWER IMPROV SERIES 4

310988 VERMEER ALL ROADS 10/02/23 hose, clamps 10-%5-15-44130 26.78 53000 10/09/23
A20779 Tree Remeval/Planting

100042 VERMONT POLICE ASSOCIATIO 10/06/23 2023 membership dues 10-5-14-10330 249.00 53001 10/09/23
2023 Dues & Subscriptions )

200284 VMCTA 10/04/233 23/24 dues 10-5-13-10330 35.00 53002 10/09/23
QCT 2023 Dues & Subscriptions

310046 W.B. MASON CO INC 09/20/23 paper towels 10-5-22-43180 33.99 53003 10/09/23
241265207 Maint. Supplies Bldgs.

310046 W.B, MASON CO INC 09/20/22 cleaning supplies 10-5-22-43180 19.74 53003 10/09/23
241275088 Maint. Bupplies Bldgs.

310046 W.B, MASON CO INC 09/20/23 oleaning supplies 10-5-14-30110 75.98 53003 10/09/23
241275088 Office Bupplies

310046 W.B, MASON COQ INC 09/22/23 towels tissue linars soap 10-5-22-43180 370.01 53003 10/09/23
241329871 Maint. Supplies Bldgs.

310046 W.B. MASON CQ INC 0%9/25/23 cleaner 10-5-22-43180 36.74 52003 10/09/23
241372264 Maint. Supplies Bldgs.

311870 WEX BANK 0%/30/23 fuel cards - Sept 2023 10-5-22-43120 158,61 53004 10/09/23
92322315 Munieipal Mowing-maint

311070 WEX BANK 08/30/23 fuel cards - Sept 2023 10-5-14-41130 2169,94 53004 10/09/23

. 92322315 Fuel - Vehicles

311070 WEX BANK 08/30/23 fuel cards ~ Sept 2023 20-5-55-41130 27,11 53004 10/09/23
92322315 Fuel - Vehiclas

311070 WEX BANK 0D9/30/23 fuel cards - Sept 2023 10-5-15-41130( 225,16 53004 10/09/23

92322315 Fuel ~ Vehicles HW



10/06/23

TOWN OF BRANDON Accounts Payable

Page 5 of 3

01:18 pm Check Waxrant Report § 63692 Current Prior Next FY Invoices Jacolyn
All Inveoices Fox Check Acct 01(1l0 General Fund} 10/09/23 To 10/09/23
Invoice Inveice Description Amount Check Check
Vendor Date Invoice Number Account Paid Number Date
Report Tetal . 455428.55

Selectboard

To the Treasurer of TOWN OF BRANDCN, We Hereby certify

that there is due to the szeveral persons whose names are
listed hexeon the sum agalnst each name and that there
are good and sufficient veuchers supporting the payments
aggregating § ***455,428.55

Let this be youxr order for the payments of these amounts.




HEHASEGRBER NG

TOWN OF 5IUANDON N 45158

(802)247-3635
‘//\ FAX:_‘(802)247-5481

_ New ﬁ’étfi’n; V7. Cryzz M.ZL;QJZJE

DATE DATE REQUIRED SPECIAL INSTRUGTIONS VENDOR NUMBER

#3200

rEQUESTED BY {.dppe Ji. 112

APPROVED BY

168-1




CYCLEWISE, INC

130 ETHAN ALLEN HWY

NEW HAVEN VT 05472
1-802-388-0669

PURCHASE AGREEMENT

BRANDON POLICE DEPT Date
Order No.
Lienholder: No Lienholder
H W C
Unit(s) Sold
Stock Mo,  NAJ  Year Make Modsl Sarial No. Color Qdom ~ Amount
ORDERED N 2022 ZERO MOTORC FXP 3 $16.6895.00
Trade information
Yaar Make Model Seriat No. Color Odom Trade §
ACCESSORIES
TOTAL UNET(S) F‘RI(,E $16 695.88
White Metal Box Small $202.50 1 $202.50 IEANDUNG ggg'og
Top Box Rack Kit (White Side Pan $112.50 1 $112.50 PARTS/IACCESSORIES 765.00
Parking Brake Kit $270.00 1 $270.00 INSTALLATION: £0.00
COMMUTER SCREEN $180.00 1 $180.00 LESS TRADE ALLOWANCE: $0.00
SUBTOTAL: $18,180.00
SALES TAX $0.00
DOCUMENTATION FEE: $80.00
REG TITLE FEES; $48.00
SERVICE CONTRACT: $¢.00
GAP PROTECTION $0.00
THEFT $0.00
PRE-PAID MAINTENANCE PLAN $0.00
PLUS TRADE PAYOFF: _ $0.00
SALE TOTAL: $18,318.00
DOWN PAYMENT: $0.00
BALANGE DUE: $18,318.00
FINANCE CHARGE: %0.00
TOTAL OF PAYMENTS: $18,318.00

Monthily Payment of

$18,318.0For 1

Months at 0.00%

interest

NOTICE TO BUYER: (1) Do not sign this agreement before you raad it or if 4 contalng any blank spaces o be fifed in, {2) You are entitied to a complately filted ir copy of this
agreement. (3) If you default in the performance of your obligations under this agresmant, the vehicle may be repossessed and you may be subject to sult and fability for

the unpaid Indebiedness evidenced by this agreemant.

TRADE-IN NOTICE: Customer raspresents that all irade in units describad above are free of )t lisns and encumbrances axcapt as noled.

“With Approved Credil. Interest rates and manthly payment are approxiniale and may vary rom those delermined

Purchaser

Co-FPurchaser

gnfar or

H““‘w\,\h

Dealer Autherized Ac‘captance / -~ T




A

Selicliation Tike: Y 2023 COPS Technology and Equipment Program Invitationa! Sclicltalion Catepory: WA

Project Tills: FY25 COPS Technology and Equipmant Program Federal Award Amonnt §18,000.00
{Congressionaily Direcled Spending) UEL HCSTNNBUERS

Froject Peried; 12020022 - 12131424 COPS ORL: .

Managing Office: LOFS TIN 036000390

B0 Grant Managern: BONIQUE BOLTON

Cirant Award Adndrdetratorn, David Kachagian

FAW Case ID FAW-TTI24

Posrard Latter

Septamber 20, 2023

Dear Bilt Woose,

Un behalf of Aliomey General Merrck B. Gaand, itis my pleasurs o inform you he Office of Communily Otiented Policing Servites {the COPS Office} has approved the
appiication submitted by BRANDON, TOWN OF ﬁos’ an gward under the funding opporiunity enlitied 2023 FY 2023 GOPS Technolegy and Equipment Program invitationat
Soficitalion. The approved sward amound is 518,000

Review e Award Instnament below carefully and familiadze yourself with alf condiions and requirenenls before accepling your award. The Award Instrument includss the
Award Offer {Award Information, Project Infarmation, Financial information, and Award Conditions) and Award Acceplance. For COPS Office and OWW funding the Award Offer
atso inciudes any Olher Award Documents,

Please nole thal award requirements include not ondy the conditions and Bmitations set Toidh s the Award Offer, bt also complance with assurances and cerfifications that
refate to conduct during the period of perfomrance Tor the awarg, These requirements encompass financlal, administrative, and programsmalic matiers, as well as olber
important matlers {e.g., specific restrictions on use of funds), Therefore, alt key S1aff should receive the awatd condifions, the assurances and certifications. and the application
a$ approved by the SOPS Office, so hat they understang the award retgusrements_ Information oy alf perfinent awaed réquirements also must be provided to any subrecipient
Of The aveard,

Should you accept the award and then i to comply #1 an awarsd requiremenl, DOJ Wil pursue appeopriste remedies for nep-compliance, which may Include termina:ion of
the award andior a requirement 1o Tepay award funds. )

Prior o accepling the award, your Emily Administrator st assign 2 Financial Manager, Grand Award Administrator, and Authorized Representative(s) n the Justice Grants
System (JustGrants). The EntRy Administrator wilt need o ensure the assigned Aulhorized Representative(sy Is current and has the legal authority to accept awards and tind
the entlly ks tie award terms and conditions. To accept ihe awaid, the Authorized Representativels) muast aceept afl pats of the Award Offer In ihe Justice Granis System
{JustGrants)y. bchading by execuling the required declaration and cmiﬁcauoa within 49 days from the award date,

To acress your funds, you will nead to enrpll I the Automiaied Standard Application for Payments (ARSAP) syslem, If you haven't already completed the enrolinent process in
ASAF The Enfity Administrator shouid have already received an email Trom ASAP 1o infilate this process.

Congratulations. and we fook Tomard to working with vou.

HUGH CLEMENTS
COPS Director

Solighation Tile . S : S
2023 FY 20533 CDPS?ecz}nn}agy aind Eq,ulpmﬁni Program mﬁta‘lmai Sof ic;iamon R
Propet Wit - :

FY2300PS “i’echnalogy a,ﬂd Equ pment ngmm {Cnngmssml yﬁirexﬂeé Spemﬁ ng}
Pr;:iect Descrimfott _f o

The E‘f 202?. CQPS Gfﬁr:é Tea:hnnl:rgy B Equipmant Srogranm {'? EP} fa an mﬁmonfy gmnt prcgmm deslgned to :ieueio;: and acqulr :'éﬁﬁm aqu;pman’c, 1
mtemperahle mmmumcﬁﬁons that as&és*inms;soﬁd?ng te and pmvenﬁng srime o X

The cbjectiw;stc prw:hi : rsding far ;:sr‘ojeﬁks wtsich i 55 and ihe ﬂow uf _azmaﬁc-n amnﬁg st em‘vorcement ay X-IHCiES,‘ tomi go et ¥
pro*mfem ﬁf\dﬁla mmunlﬁes %hey Serva. a‘zmd?ng sh snd i theammms.spec:ﬁeef tnder” the heading "ﬁ:()mmuﬂltyi}ﬁanted mﬁiﬂm Serﬁc@s.
Tedxmfu,gy mdsqulpmant Eﬁmm:?nrw ;!mjems} mps Lew Enfomement ‘:ef:hm gy ard t-:qulpmm‘t” i ;he }arnt Ekp!amtmr statemenf vmsinn o, whlch [} mcnmeratad
seferenga into PublicLew 137828, o S : - S L ; :




|

ﬁ r—"ﬁ"‘ﬁ-‘m ,

Cc::ver Sheet for Brandon Residents Applying
far Apneintment ta Tawn Baards, Commissians,

‘ Committees, and Public Offices ‘ BRANDON

Position Applying for

%ﬁ/ Comnthve.

Your name
:J/J)ua /54: )y
Physical address ‘7 'Fj’ / | Mailing if different
26 Aswnl Ky
’ Best telephone I N7 ~8BEL, l Alternate telephone ! ‘

l Email address l
L BAdeys DRLVDRALCA @ Yhhoo - Com

You understand that your application for this pesition will be made public: nitleils
' ] Mmu.m@@.l&mn'.@&hbﬁ*@‘.ﬂw Tovere onf Branalan Mavmant ’ &ﬁ{b“ ko ' |

Thank you for your willingness to serve the Town of Brandon. Applicants interested in serving on o
board, commission, or committee of the Town are asked to:

o Atiend ot least one meeting of that board before qpplying to be seated on it

e Provide the information requested on this cover sheet to the town manager
(shopkins@iownefbrandon.com)

Appointees are asked to:
*  Attend all regular ond speclal meetings of the board
s LComnly with Vemmant Onan Masting Law (o handhoak will be prosicdled o pou by the Town)
e Follow the Town of Brandon Cenflict of Interest and Ethical Conduct Policy
o {published ut www.townefbrandon.com under “Resources”)
¢ Contribute to efficient work by reviewing all appropricte material before each meeting
®  Advise the fown manager immediately should you resign before your term ends

In o brief letter submitted with this cover sheet, please summarize the reasons you are requesting
appoiniment, any skills or qualifications you may bring to the position, ond any other information you

feel would be refevant and helpful to the selectboard as it makes its selection.

By submiiting this opplication, | affirm that the facis set forth in it are frue and complete.

4.
Signature: \,?/7’/4/ /Qg«//{// Deate: &

The Town of Brandon is committed to providing equal employment and volunteer opportunities without
regard to race, color, sex, religion, sexual orieniation, national origin, disability, genetic information,
Pregnancy, disability, or any other protected characteristic as outlined by federal, state, or local laws.



From: Dawn Balley baileysdbldranch@yahoo.com
Subject: Budget committes
Date: October 3, 2023 at 10119 AM
To: Hopkins, Seth shopkins@townofbrandon.com

I would like to be considered to be on the budget committee that will be working on the

24 / 25 budget. As a former board member and budget committee member | feel qualified to contribute
fo this process.

Thank you

D Bailey

Sent from my iPhone



Cover Sheet for Brandon Residents Applying
for Appointment to Town Boards, Commissions,
Committees, and Public Offices

Your name

irOqu.)(—CﬁS‘b { @f_

Physical: uddress A e G Moulm if dlfferent Bybo .

T Mg e L | Mg M
Besf 1eiephone Q L_/,? X 2? 7 ? Alferncfe ’relephone K@ ARG B (A
fFmalladdress ) Seoolid Byabkooicown
You undersmnd fhat your upphcqnon for this posmon will be made publ;c E\YES initials %ég__
You are a legal resident of the Town of Brandon, Vermont T NE YES initials _%$

Thank you for your willingness to serve the Town of Brandon. Applicants interested in serving on a
board, commission, or committee of the Town are asked to:

e Attend at least one meeting of that board before applying to be seated on it
¢ Provide the information recuested on this cover sheet fo the town manager

(shopkins@townofbrandon.com)

Appointees are asked to:
e Attend all regular and special meetings of the board
o Comply with Vermont Open Meeting Law {a handbook will be provided to you by the Town)
e Follow the Town of Brandon Conflict of Interest and Ethical Conduct Policy l
o (published of www.townofbrandon.com under “Resources”)
Contribute to efficient work by reviewing all appropriate material before each meeting
¢ Adyvise the town manager immediately should you resign before your term ends

In o brief letter submitted with this cover sheet, please summarize the reasons you are requesting
appointment, any skills or qualifications you may bring to the position, and any other information you
feel would be relevant and helpful to the selectboard as it makes its selection.

By submitting this application, | affirm that the facts set forth in it are true and complete.

Signature: %‘7/“/ VLA’L]AF w@%ﬂ.‘» Date: C?’ 20-A%

The Town of Brandon is committed to providing equal employment and volunteer opportunities without
regard to race, color, sex, religion, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, genetic information,
pregnancy, disability, or any other protected characteristic as outlined by federal, state, or local laws.



September 30, 2023

Brandon Select Board
49 Center St
Brandon, VT 05733

Dear Select Board members:

Please accept this letter as my interest in remaining on tHe budget committee. 1 was appointed
to the budget committee in 2014. | enjoy and look forward in continuing to bring forward tax
payers and citizens comments.

| helped manage the IT/Telecom budget at Green Mountain Power. My experience, over the
years, with many different budget scenarios has helped me with the process and ideas working

on budgets.

I am invested in this process and hope we can continue to learn from the past so the budget will
pass on the first try.

Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

Janet Coolidge



Cover Sheet for Brandon Residents Applying
for Appointment to Town Boards, Commissions,

P : -"D:\ e
Committees, and Public Offices BR ANIS%N

Position Applying for EUM X M\J'\?am—ci Lo nnma ;-ﬁ%

Your ngame A ':g\\'i e

Physical Mailing if diff t
hysical addrass = Marble St iling ifferen

Best telephone Alternate telephone

1524575,

Emait address

Yl lfh‘sq—r@ﬂuml\@a“« |
You understand that your application for this position will be made public: E—yfs inittels @5

You are a legal resident of the Town of Branden, Yermont B ves iniﬁms/g@é

Thank you for your willingness to serve the Town of Brandon. Applicants interested in serving on ¢
board, commission, or committee of the Town are asked to:

¢ Attend at least one meeting of that board before applying to be seated on it

¢ Provide the information requested on this cover sheet to the town manager
(shopkins@townofbrandon.com)

Appointees are asked to:
o Attend all reguler and special meetings of the boord
e  Comply with Yermont Open Meeting Law (a handbook will be provided to you by the Town}
* Follow the Town of Brandon Conflict of Interest and Ethical Conduct Policy
0 (published at www.townofbrandon.com under “Resources”)
Contribute to efficient work by reviewing all appropriate material before each meeting
¢ Advise the town manager Immediately should you resign before your term ends

in a brief letter submitted with this cover sheet, please summarize the redsons you are reguesting
appeintment, any skills or qualifications you may bring to the pesition, and any other information you
feel would be relevant and helpful to the selectboard as it makes its selection.

By submitting this application, | affirm that the facts set forth in it are true and complete.

Signature: ﬂc;t%QLM Date: (ﬂlﬂzx"a%

The Town of Branden is committed to providing equal employment and volunteer opportunities without
regard to race, color, sex, religion, sexual orfentation, national origin, disability, genetic information,
pregnancy, disability, or any other protected characteristic as outlined by federal, state, or local laws.



Neil Silins

5 Marble 5t.
Brandon, VT 05733
October 2, 2023

Mr. Hopkins

Town Manager
Town of Brandon
49 Center Street
Brandon, VT 05733

Dear Mr, Hopkins:

Please consider this to be my expression of interest and application for a seat on the Budget
Advisory Workshop. [ have previously served on this board and found the work to be interesting and
stimulating. Additionally, | believe | have dore a creditable job in carrying out the mandate of the
workshop/committee. :

| am reasonably familiar with book-keeping practices and with town finanees. | feel | can continue to
have a positive influence on the decision-making process carried out in this workshop/committee,

Sincerely,

Neil Silins



Cover Sheet for Brandon Residents Applying
for Appointment to Town Boards, Commissions,

Committees, and Public Offices BRANDON

BT Lrer L E

Posiilon Applymg for R AT
[ oaked Jpkiao

Physical address \ *b\_) &R ST Matling if different

Best telephone 5/0 N /)-',Cf { gsg Alternate telephone

Email address \oa—r-r-:&d oty A @ &MI‘ \ J

You understand that your application for this position will be made public: MYES ;nmqlsQV
L/

You are a legal resident of the Town of Brandon, Vermont m YES Iniﬁq]m_

Thank you for your willingness to serve the Town of Brandon. Applicants interested in serving on
board, commission, or committee of the Town are asked to:

¢ Attend of least one meeting of that board before applying to be seated on it
* Provide the information requested on this cover sheet to the town manager

(shopkins@townofbrandon.com)

Appointees are asked to:
¢ Attend all regular and special meetings of the board
e Comply with Yermont Open Meeting Law {a handbook will be provided to you by the Town)
* Follow the Town of Brandon Conflict of Interest and Ethical Conduct Policy
o {published at www.townofbrondon.com under “Resources”)
¢ Contribute to efficient work by reviewing all appropriate material before each meeting
» Adpvise the town manager immediately should you resign before your term ends

In a brief letter submitted with this cover sheet, please summarize the reasons you are requesting
appointment, any skills or qualifications you may bring to the position, and any other information you
feel would be relevant and helpful to the selectboard as it makes its selection.

By submitting this-mpplication, | affirm that the facts set forth in it are true and complete.

ngnafurei\_[ G"""? C) —~— Date: /O B 01@&3

The Town of Brandon is committed to providing equal employment and volunteer opportunities without
regard to race, color, sex, religion, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, genetic information,
pregnancy, disability, or any other protected characteristic as outlined by federal, state, or local laws.




From: Barry Varian barryvarian@gmail.com
Subject: Budget committee
Date: Oct 2, 2023 at 7:51:29 PM
Ta: Barry Varian barryvarian@gmail.com

Select board members,

I am writing to request consideration for appointment to the budget committee. | have
served in that capacity for several budget cycles and proudly contributed to the
creation of successful and meaningful budgets in each.

Through that process | brought perspective as longtime community member and
retired business leader. Through the sessions | have gained knowledge of the
operational costs associated with keeping our town compliant with sustainable
infrastructure and continuing focus on growth and development.

| have an understanding of many of the thought processes that have guided us to a

positive point in our recent evolution and would like to continue to be a part of that
going forward.

Respectfully,
Barry Varian

Sent from my iPhone



- - = o =
S = Eeaa
%M = z SHaTE e B

R

oy L G T e e e s A U
s T R : Gl o = S San

e




September 27, 2023

To the Selectboard of Brandon, Vermont,

| am applying for an appointment to the Budget Committee for the Town of Brandon. | believe my
experiences both in my career and volunteer work qualifies me as a viable candidate.

I am an active member of the Brandon community and a lustice of the Peace. Asa Sales and
Development Vice President for an international skin care company responsible for creating and
managing a $25 million budget, | have the skills to decipher where money can be best raised and where
it is most effectively used. As an Executive Director and Board member of several non-profit
organizations throughout my life | understand the responsibility of not squandering hard-won income,
while still accomplishing a mission. | am a former state representative for Vermont and have grappled
with state funding and budget meetings. In past communities [ have served on economic development
committees and been appointed treasurer several times.

I wish to bring all my experience to the Budget Committee to serve the residents of Brandon to my
fullest capacity.

Thank you for your consideration.

Patricia (Tricia) Welch
13 Mt Pleasant Dr
Brandon, VT



